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The information in this annual report is provided in good faith, with the intention of being accurate and comprehensive.  

While we have taken great care to ensure its accuracy, unintentional errors or omissions may occur.  

Please note that any such discrepancies are not intentional.  

 

Our Club Values 

 

Acknowledgement of Traditional Land Owners  

Palm Beach (Qld) Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. would like to acknowledge the traditional owners of the land and pay 

respect to their elders past, present and emerging.  

Respect 
We respect our past, people, property and place 

 
Unity 

We are united in purpose 

Inclusive 
We are welcoming and friendly 

 
Involvement 

We get involved 

Thank you to our sponsors & supporters! 

 



 

Palm Beach (Qld) Surf Life Saving Club Inc 95th Annual Report 2024-2025 
Page 1 

 

 

Table of Contents 

Notice of Surf Club AGM ................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Honorary Life Members .................................................................................................................................................................... 5  

Branch and State Representation ..................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Officers and Position Holders 2024-2025 ......................................................................................................................................... 6 

President’s Report ............................................................................................................................................................................ 7 

Membership Statistics ...................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Membership 2024-2025 ................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

Treasurer’s Report .......................................................................................................................................................................... 13 

Club Captain’s Report ..................................................................................................................................................................... 14 

Beach Statistics 2024-2025 ............................................................................................................................................................. 15 

Member Patrol Hours 2024-2025 ................................................................................................................................................... 19 

Education Report ............................................................................................................................................................................ 21 

Senior Awards Gained in 2024-2025 .............................................................................................................................................. 22 

Sports Performance Report ............................................................................................................................................................ 24 

Seniors and Masters Carnival Results ............................................................................................................................................. 25 

Youth Development Program ......................................................................................................................................................... 26 

Junior Activities Report ................................................................................................................................................................... 28 

Junior Award Winners .................................................................................................................................................................... 31 

Junior Carnival Results .................................................................................................................................................................... 32 

Junior Development Awards Gained .............................................................................................................................................. 35 

Grants Report ................................................................................................................................................................................. 38 

Life Member Inductee: Samuel Morgan ......................................................................................................................................... 39 

Officers Honour Board 1930-2025 .................................................................................................................................................. 40 

Annual Awards Winners ................................................................................................................................................................. 47 

Vales ............................................................................................................................................................................................... 49 

Sponsors and Supporters  ............................................................................................................................................................... 52 

Supporters Club Annual Report 

Supporters Club President’s Report ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….55 

Supporters Club General Manager’s Report ................................................................................................................................... 56 

Supporters Club Honour Board....................................................................................................................................................... 57 

Appendix 1 - Surf Life Saving Club Financial Report and Statements ………………………………………………………………………………………..60 

Appendix 2 - Supporters Club Financial Report and Statements ………………………………………………………………………………………………78 

 



 

Palm Beach (Qld) Surf Life Saving Club Inc 95th Annual Report 2024-2025 
Page 2 

 

 Notice of Annual General Meeting 



 

Palm Beach (Qld) Surf Life Saving Club Inc 95th Annual Report 2024-2025 
Page 3 



 

Palm Beach (Qld) Surf Life Saving Club Inc 95th Annual Report 2024-2025 
Page 4 



 

Palm Beach (Qld) Surf Life Saving Club Inc 95th Annual Report 2024-2025 
Page 5 

 

Honorary Life Members 

Palm Beach Representation 
Point Danger Branch 

PDB Council - Andrew Gault/Anna Carroll 

PDB Board of Junior Activities - Josh Sealey 

PDB Board of Lifesaving - Greg Clark/Ben Tidey 

PDB Youth Development Committee - Christie Fox 

PDB Surf Sports - Colleen Te Heu Heu Tukino and Greg Cox 

 

 

NAME 

Frederick Aldridge † 

Harry Aldridge † 

Ronald Allen-Waters † 

Geoffrey Bagnall 

Kenneth Bagnall † 

Ronald Bagnall 

Trevor Bone 

Reg J Carr † 

John Church † 

I  Cliff † 

Ronald Coffey † 

Ian Cowper † 

Ronald Crowe 

Harry Edwards † 

Arnold Eussen 

Richard Felton 

Keith Forsyth † 

Gary Fraser 

Andrew Frizzell OBE OAM † 

Bill Gallagher † 

Noel Gill 

Russell Gilmour 

Gilbert Graham † 

Barry Hayward 

Darrel Henry 

Barry Howes † 

Ross Howes 

Warren Johnson 

Barry Jukes † 

Lloyd Kenny † 

Tom King † 

SEASON INDUCTED 

1973 

1972 

1967 

2018 

1979 

1993 

1980 

1949 

1937 

1938 

1961 

1996 

2009 

1994 

2016 

1989 

1960 

2021 

1940 

2000 

2012 

1991 

1968 

2002 

2015 

1978 

1983 

2000 

1970 

1985 

1936 

NAME 

Graeme Kling † 

Troy Kling 

John Landers 

Ross Linnett † 

Phillip Mann 

George Marshall † 

John McPhee † 

Robert McPherson † 

Harry Mellor † 

Samuel Morgan 

Malcolm Nutt † 

Roy Pascoe † 

Colin Paterson † 

Antony Rapallo 

Colin Rowden † 

Peter (Scott) Rawlings 

Ian Sarow 

Russell Schultz 

Gordon Shears † 

Jack Spencer † 

Jeffrey Spink 

Daniel Stewart 

John Stewart † 

Robert Stewart 

Graham Stockwell 

Robert Stockwell 

George Stone † 

Cec Tweddell † 

N  Walsh † 

Maurie Webb OAM † 

 

 

SEASON INDUCTED 

2009 

2012 

1997 

2001 

2000 

1975 

1944 

1971 

1948 

2024 

1999 

1952 

1990 

2009 

1939 

2015 

1984 

2000 

1998 

1955 

2012 

1995 

1943 

1992 

2005 

2002 

1956 

1942 

1941 

1957 
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Officers and Position Holders 
Patrons and Governors 

Patron  Daniel Stewart OAM 

Life Governor  Joy Webb 

 

Honorary Positions 

Honorary Solicitor Paul Davis,  

 McLaughlin’s Lawyers 

 

Board of Directors 

President Andrew Gault (to Dec 24) 

 Anna Carroll (Jan 25-) 

Director of Finance Scott Lyall (to Apr 25) 

Director of Administration Anna Carroll (to Dec 24) 

 Gregory Cox (Jan 25-) 

Director Gregory Cox 

Director Danielle Stebbins 

 

Operations Committee 

Chief Training Officer Donna Riley (to Oct 24) 

Club Captains Greg Clark/Ben Tidey 

Junior Activities Officer Joshua Sealey 

Junior Secretary Leesa Monaghan 

Surf Sports Officer vacant 

Youth Development Officer Christie Fox 

 

Other Key Office Bearers 

Club Vice Captain Codey Trethewey 

First Aid Officer Sharon Finucan 

Grievance Officer Leanne Major 

IRB Officer Ben Tidey 

Surf Life Saving Gear Steward Colin Harvey 

Surf Sports Gear Steward John Te Heu Heu Tukino 

Team Manager (Masters) N/A 

Team Manager (Open) N/A 

Team Manager (Juniors) Liz Murphy 

Transport Officer Tony Rapallo 

 

Staff and Appointed Contractors 

General Manager Lana Ireland (Jun 24 to Jan 25) 

 Peta Lawlor (Feb 25—Current) 

Administrators Pauline Bachelard (to Jan 25) 

 Callie Wood-Collier (Apr 24 to Jan 25) 

 Jacqueline Waller (May 2025—

 Current) 

Lifesaving & Education  Juliana King (May 2025—Current) 

Auditor Dickfos Dunn Adam 

Trainers Assessors 

Richard Andrews Matt Barber 

Mary Farrell 

Samuel Morgan 

 

Officials Award Holders 

Technical Core 

Matthew Allport Janice Binskin 

Timothy Matchett Petra Wongreyova 

Arnold Eussen 

Anna Carroll 

Gregory Clark 

Andrew McMaugh 

Nicolas Perugino 

Abigail Channell 

Erica Read 

Cassandra Turner 

Jacqueline Waller 

 

Paid Coaching Team  

Colleen Te Heu Heu Tukino, Beach & Nippers 

Louise Ruff, Juniors 

Jack Carroll, Surf Sports 

 

Patrol Captains 

Group 1 Benjamin Gill 

Group 2 Mary Farrell 

Group 3 Codey Trethewey 

Group 4 Donovan Ince 

Group 5 Gregory Clark 

Group 6 Kane Merritt and Ray Blane 

Group 7 Colin Harvey 

Group 8 Adam Jackson 

Group 9 Stuart Gordon 

Group 10 Greg Cox 

Group 11 Matt Kerrison 

Group 12 Luke Opray 
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President’s Report 
 
 
Season 24/25 didn’t go to plan with Cyclone Alfred, farewelling staff, change of 
President mid-season, and cancellation of our flagship competitions – Branch and State 
titles - with one too many wet and windy patrols that even the 3pm “hot chips and 
gravy” couldn’t improve.  
 
What did go to plan was how we rose to the occasion, and were led by our values: 
• We were united in taping up windows, sandbagging and battening down the 

hatches 
• We got involved in the office when we were short on staff and kept turning up to 

training, and subbing into patrol groups 
• We respected mother nature and what she threw us, and the advice of our 

governing body not to compete even though the disappointment was great.  
• We met our goal of zero preventable deaths and welcomed close to 40,000 

people to Palm Beach.  
 
To run a club of 900 members needs many volunteer hours and many people to put their hands up and give of 
their time. Nippers wouldn’t be possible without Josh Sealey, Leesa Monaghan and their energetic Age Managers 
(with their waterproof clipboards), herding 400+ five to 14 year olds every Saturday morning - safely guided on the 
beach and in the water by Rohan Dredge’s orange army of water safety volunteers.  
 
Our community wouldn’t be safe without Ben Tidey’s coordination of 12 patrol groups and 160 patrollers; without 
Colin Harvey maintaining tractors, trailers, patrol arenas, spinal boards and rescue boards; and without volunteers 
delivering Bronze and SRC courses. Nor would we be safe without Sharon Finucan’s first class first aid room and her 
blood kits.  
 
Our beach wouldn’t be the same without Coach Wal (Colleen Te Heu Heu Tukino), Lou Ruff and Jack Carroll’s crew 
of clubbies who train on the sand and in the water, staying fit to compete and keep our beach safe. Thank you to 
each of our many members for volunteering and getting involved. 
 
This season we created a locally grown coaching team and program. Drawing on the talent within our club to 
provide a program that built confidence and competence that will continue to grow in future seasons. 
 
Partnering with AirBnB, Palm Beach Surf Club was in the spotlight with a promotion offering a weekend stay in the 
dorms with a surf lesson from Mick Fanning. As part of this promotion, AirBnB provided a refresh to the dorm and 
more significant improvements are planned with the generosity of the Queensland State Government’s election 
commitment of $420,000 to continue the upgrade - creating a space for members and community groups. With 
this funding we will also look to find safer access points onto the beach for the 400+ nippers on Saturday morning 
and the patrol trailer and IRB. 
 
Working with Councillor Josh Martin, Wi-Fi has been installed in the adjoining Andy Frizzell Park aptly named SLSC 
– Nippers.  This will improve our ability to electronically sign nippers in and out of the Saturday morning program 
using the LiveHeats wrist bands. 
 
We continued to struggle to provide the education program to members who were eager to complete their Bronze 
Medallion and train IRB drivers and crew members.  Looking to Season 25/26, this frustration is being addressed 
with a restructure of resources and a dedicated role for education and lifesaving. 
 
Looking ahead we will increase the number of patrollers and grow to 14 patrol groups; widen the coaching 
program to provide our patrolling members with sessions to maintain their skills and fitness, and continue to lean 
into the passion, skills and diversity of our members. 
 

President, Anna Carroll 
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Our long-term connection with GG Enviro continues and we welcomed Coastal as a gold sponsor for the three 
years. McLaughlin Lawyers continue to provide guidance and support. Thanks go to Ingwerson & Lansdown for 
their financial contribution, and the silent donators and supporters who have provided equipment without seeking 
acknowledgement; in particular Dan Stewart OAM for his annual bursary that supported our nipper program this 
season. 
 
Our Supporters Club continues to provide financial support needed to keep our beaches safe, employ our life 
savers and working together, we are a hub for the community. 
 
I would like to make a special mention to Greg Cox. Greg was a nipper at Palm Beach, patrol captain for patrol 
group 10, an accomplished competitor and gold medallion athlete, who built the sports surf program we enjoy 
today. Greg also loves being on the gurney at the end of season club clean-up day. Greg has been a Board member 
of the club since 2017 and for the last eight years has attended monthly meetings and in his calm, considered, 
science-based way, has represented the voice of our members and has kept us grounded in what it means to 
provide a community service, a place of belonging, and to be a life saver. This is Greg’s last season on the Board 
and he has handed the baton over - but he will still be in charge of the gurney at the end of season clean-up. Thank 
you on behalf of the Board members that have served with you. 
 
Finally, thanks to the Operations Committee and Board members who give of their time, advice, and skills to lead 
the club and continue the legacy our founding members started 95 years ago. 

 
Anna Carroll 
President 
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Membership Category 21/22  22/23  23/24 24/25  

Junior Activity Member (5-13 years) 299 308 337 391  

Cadet Member (13-15 years) 20 10 16 20  

Active Junior (15-18 years) 48 56 63 40  

Active Senior (18 years and over) 172 152 134 106  

Long Service 10 9 7 4  

Past Active 1 2 1 2 ➔ 

Associate 237 246 254 304  

Life Member 28 28 23 18  

Leave/Restricted 0 6 5 4 ➔ 

Nipper Parent    7  

Reserve Active    2  

General    1  

Probationary 0 6 3 0  

Non Member Participants 1 0 0 1  

Total Active 240 218 214 168  

Total Membership 816 823 844 900  
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Membership 2024-2025 
Life Member 

(see page 3 for full Life Mem-

ber list) 
Bone, Trevor 

Felton, Richard 

Fraser, Gary 

Hayward, Barry 
Henry, Darrel 

Howes, Barry 

Johnson, Warren 

Kling, Troy 
Landers, John 

Mann, Phillip 

Morgan, Samuel 

Rapallo, Antony 
Rawlings, Peter 

Spink, Jeffrey 

Stewart, Daniel 

Stewart, Robert 
Stockwell, Graham 

Stockwell, Robert 

Gill, Benjamin 

Lawlor, Peta 
Norton-Smith, Julian 

Todd, Raymond 

 

Past Active 

Kerr, Chloe 
Te Heu Heu Tukino, Colleen 

 

Reserve Active 

Grant, Peter 
Matchett, Timothy 

 

Active (18+) 

Allport, Isaac 
Allport, Matthew 

Allport, Maxwell 

Anderson, Lee 

Andrews, Richard 
Baddeley, Catherine 

Baker, Debbie 

Barber, Matthew 

Batton, Lucas 
Bell, Michelle 

Belleli, Daniel 

Beveridge, Robert 

Blane, Raymond 
Bloor, Karen 

Bourke, Anthony 

Bruce, Daniel 

Burgess, Michael 

Callard, Wendy 
Campbell, Jake 

Carroll, Anna 

Carroll, Darcy 

Carroll, David 
Carroll, Emily 

Carroll, Jack 

Chibel, Dominique 

Churchett, Craig 

Cigotti, Gabriel 
Clark, Gregory 

Cox, Ben 

Cox, Greg 

Cox, Isabella 
Cox, Sebastian 

Dredge, Rohan 

Edgar, Simon 

Ellis, Ryan 
Evans, Benedict 

Farrell, Mary 

Finucan, Sharon 

Foat, Molly 
Foat, Simon 

Francis, Russell 

Fraser, Luke 

Gilmour, Mitchell 
Gordon, Stuart 

Harvey, Colin 

Hearn, Jordana 

Hempsall, Joanne 
Hewitt, Abby 

Hitchen, John 

Howe, David 

Hvass, Jason 

Ince, Donovan 
Jackson, Adam 

Jaques, Renee 

Judd, Jo 

Kent, Alyssa 
Kerrison, Matthew 

King, Juliana 

Langton, Jennifer 

Lincoln, Matthew 
Logan, Taite 

Loomes, Susan 

MacTaggart, James 

Maitre, Bertrand 
Major, Leanne 

Maniwa, Sai 

Marais, Craig 

Marchand, Phillip 
Merrett, Kane 

Mocke, Oliver 

Monaghan, Leesa 

Murphy, Daragh 
Murphy, Elizabeth 

Murphy, Scott 

O'Brien, Marc 

O'Neill, Scott 

Opray, Luke 
Parker, Treena 

Perugino, Nicolas 

Pike, Samuel 

Pilarski, Simon 
Pooley, Gregory 

Read, Erica 

Rees, Brook 

Rezek, Kurt 

Richards, Kate 
Riley, Donna 

Roberts, Shelley 

Ruff, Louise 

Ryan, Cruze 
Ryan, Glen 

Sabitov, Renat 

Sams, Gerard 

Scott, Lisa 
Sealey, Joshua 

Skelley, Bayden 

Small, Dave 

Stanojevic, Alec 
Tidey, Benjamin 

Trethewey, Codey 

Viljoen, Tessa 

Walker, Timothy 
Walton, Brayden 

Walton, Geoffrey 

Warriner, Lewis 

Whitehouse, Rob 
Wood-Collier, Callie 

Wood-Collier, Mark 

Wyatt, Molly 

 

Active Junior 15-18  
Alford, Summa 

Anderson, Billy 

Anderson, Cooper 

Bailey, Lilly 
Clancy, Joshua 

Cooke, Piper 

Cooper, Charlotte 

Foat, Annabelle 
Gillis, Ava 

Hession, Zyah 

Holmes, Molly 

Holstein, Finnegan 
Jones-Dean, Dylan 

Leech, Cody 

Loveday, Urban 

Lucey, Ryder 
Maitre, Miro 

Martin, Will 

Martin, Ziggy 

Mckernan, Lachlan 
Mulkerrins, Cole 

Nagai, Yuito 

Payne, Markus 

Perugino, Angelina 

Pooley, Grace 
Pringault, Brayten 

Richardson, Kora 

Robinson, Holland 

Ruby, Slater 
Schmarr, Cooper 

Scott, Angus 

Sealey, Skye 

Skuse, Lachlan 

Sutch, Charlotte 
Te Heu Heu Tukino, Minka 

Thompson, Benjamin 

Thompson, Joel 

Tyrrell, Lily May 
Veling, Jarrah 

Webb, Anise 

White, Jasco 

Wright, Dane 
 

Active Cadet (13-15 years) 

Baxter, Xanthe 

Benavides, Maria 
Bentson, Willa 

Cooke, Bridie 

Cooper, Rose 

Dawson, Samantha 
De Broughe, Oliver 

Dredge, Zarriah 

Griffiths, Harry 

Hams, Lucille 
Jones, Bailan 

Jones, Jesse 

New, Teagan 

Numrich, Tom 

Paimalan, Hermione 
Pooley, James 

Ramnarain, Coco 

Richardson, Charlotte Bella 

Tidey, Digby 
Walewski, Ola 

Walker, Lachlan 

 

Associate 
Alegria, Erwin 

Alegria, Melissa 

Alexander, Brooke 

Allen, Carolina 
Allen, Timothy 

Ambrose, Marle 

Ambrose, Trevor 

Anderson, Bethany 
Andersson, Rachel 

Arman, Loani 

Armes, William 

Armstrong, Thomas 
Askew, Kain 

Auzino, Giovanni 

Bailey, Rory 

Bailey, Sheri 

Ball, Errenn 
Baptista Pereira, Joao Longo 

Barnes, Jorja 

Barnish, Melanie 

Bateman, Claire 
Baxter, Jeffrey 

Beamish, Shannon 
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Membership 2024-2025 cont. 
Bentson, Benjamin 

Bentson, Kelly 

Bergstrum, Aaron 
Beutel, Kylie 

Beveridge, Coco 

Biel, Agnieszka 

Binskin, Janice 
Black, Ian 

Blane, Tarnah 

Booth, Jason 

Booth, Tammara 
Bremer, Christine 

Brinckley, Matthew 

Brinkmann, Andrew 

Brinkmann, Resharyn 
Butler, Jane 

Butler, Shaun 

Carter, Tegan 

Cely, Alexandra 
Channell, Abigail 

Channell, Mark 

Charlton, Taylor 

Chester, Leah 
Chong, Luenna 

Churchett, Kim 

Clark, Alma 

Clark, Mike 

Cooney, Jethro 
Core, Ashley 

Core, Nash 

Crane, Michelle 

Daley, Marc 
Davies, James 

Davis, Amanda 

Davis, Erica 

Davis, Michelle 
Dawson, Cheralee 

Dawson, Elizabeth 

Dawson, Peter 

Day, Rebecca 
De Broughe, Brad 

Delaney, Patrick 

Dephoff, Kylie 

Devisser, Bianca 
Devisser, Ryan 

Di Fuccia, Juliano 

Diamond, Hannah 

Diehm, Nathan 
Donlan, Shane 

Doogan, Scott 

Dredge, Megan 

Du Plessis, Francois 

Duckett, Kate 
Duckett, Michael 

Duffy, Luisa 

Duffy, Scott 

Dwyer, Qwen 
Easton, Alicia 

Eccles, Rebecca 

Egan, Andrea 

Emmerson, Dianne 

Fa'Avale, Nicola 
Fahey, Adam 

Field, Sharna 

Field, Trent 

Follent, Renee 
Forbes, Kerri 

Ford, Paul 

Fortescue, Sean 

Fox, Christie 
Foxon, Fiona 

Samuel, Frederick 

Gay, Brett 

Geappen, Brylee 
Gemmell, Jillian 

Godfrey, Mark 

Gooch, Mitchell 

Gostelow, Basia 
Gostelow, David 

Griffin, Andrew 

Griffiths, Laura 

Grove, Lauren 
Grys, Veronica 

Habib, Brittany 

Habib, Illiyah 

Hamilton, Jodi 

Hamilton, Nathanael 
Hanlon, Sean 

Hanna, Peter 

Harry, Mitchell 

Hart, Steven 
Henricks, Krystal 

Henry, David 

Hodgson, Emily 

Hodgson, James 
Hudson, Kate 

Hunt, Stephen 

Hurley, Jaime 

Hurley, Nathan 
Hynes, Lachlan 

Inoue, Ryuichi 

Ireland, Teek 

Jaszewski, Glenn 
Jensen, Simon 

Jones, Lee 

Judd, Philip 

Kane, Mitchell 
Katene, Krystal 

Kent, Peter 

Khanna, Anshul 

Khanna, Monika 

Klein, Billie 
Koleczko, Matthew 

Kumar, Neelesh 

Kumlin, Carl 

Lacey, Ian 
Lankshear, Hamish 

Lankshear, Jo 

Le Roux, Cecile 

Le Roux, Matthys 

Lewis, Haley 
Lewis, Matthew 

Liston, John 

Litwinczuk, Samantha 

Lockhart, Amelia 
Logan, Gregory 

Loring, Ayleece 

Loring, Robert William 

Lucey, Holley 
Lyall, Scott 

Lyne, Daniel 

Mackay, Grace 

Mackenzie, Ziggy 
Mactaggart, Sammi 

Major, Amanda 

Major, Stephen 

Maleham, Candice 
Martiensen, Tony 

Martin, Nicholas 

Mathew, Mary 

Matterson, Chloe 
McCafferty, Michael 

McDonald, Tracey 

McEnearney, Chelsie 

McEnearney, Peter 

Mckinnon-Smith, Chloe 
Mclaren, Kent 

Mclaren, Rick 

McMaugh, Andrew 

Mcmullin, Haley 
Meers, Michael 

Meers, Tina 

Middleton, Jackie 

Mitchell, Anthony 
Moloney, Chris 

Monro, Neil 

Moore, Coral 

Morley, Kellie 
Morton, Kerrin 

Morton, Myf 

Mudge, Matthew 

Murphy, Lauren 
Musgrave, Anthony 

Musgrave, Jasmine 

Nagy, Edward 

Nagy, Tanya 
Newman, Dom 

Nichols, Tegan 

Nieuwoudt, Justin 

Nieuwoudt, Nadia 

Norton, Claire 
Norval, Jaclyn 

Numrich, Holger 

Ogrady, Duane 

Ogrady, Katie 
Oliver, Katherine 

Oliver, Peter 

Paimalan, Louie 

Paramonov, Alexander 

Paramonov, Elina 
Parris, Joshua 

Parris, Katie 

Pearce, Pamela 

Pentsa, Millie 
Phillips, Claire 

Pinder, Imogen 

Plourde, Caroline 

Pooley, Gayle 
Popvassilev, Boiana 

Prescott, Blair 

Proctor, Lucy 

Purchase, Amy 
Purchase, Kirk 

Quill, Luke 

Ramnarain, Roshan 

Ramnarain-Little, Tracy-Jade 
Read, Hunter 

Rezek, Mary 

Richards, Blake 

Richards, Katie 
Richards, Tara 

Richardson, Sean 

Riddett, Cathryn 

Ritchie, Ian 

Ritchie, Laura 
Ritorto, Darren 

Robbins, Stefanie 

Robbins, William 

Roberts, Brittany 
Roberts, Debra 

Roberts, Dylan 

Roberts, Tyrone 

Robin, Amy 
Robinson, April 

Robinson, Dena 

Robinson, Scott 

Roe, Jessica 
Rowe, Amy 

Rowe, Nathan 

Russell, Wade 

Ryan, Shaughn Patrick 
Sabitova, Anna 

Saunders, Andrew 

Saunders, Mellissa 

Scales, Mark 
Schultz, Kimberley 

Schutz, Brendon 

Scott, Debbie 

Sealey, Louise 

Shanahan, Rhianna 
Sharma, Sandhini 

Shiota, Kazuo 

Shiota, Natsuko 

Skelley, Alexsandra 
Smith, Benjamin 

Sonnekus, Reino 
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Membership 2024-2025 cont. 
Sonnekus, Shelley 

Spits, Brett 

Stafford, Carla 
Stafford, Mitchell 

Staples, Kristee 

Stebbins, Danielle 

Stebbins, Peter 
Stening, Michael 

Stewart, Samuel 

Stockwell, Jack 

Stockwell, Tayla 
Stones, James 

Sutcliffe, Andrew 

Taylor, Ariel 

Taylor, Brendan 
Te Heu Heu Tukino, Hoani 

Te Riini, Nicole 

Te Riini, Sian 

Te Riini, Tane 
Thomas, Carly 

Thomas, Rhys 

Threlfo, Sophie 

Toomey, Daniel 
Trott, David 

Turner, Cassandra 

Turner, Jason 

Vaessen, Jennifer 

Valentine-Davies, Gemma 
Veneman, Nicholas 

Veraa, Chris 

Walewski, Patrycja 

Walker, Bradley 
Walker, Lauren 

Waller, Jacqueline 

Watson, Michael 

Webb, Ashton 
Webb, David 

Webb, Jessica 

Webber, Brandon 

Webber, Sarah 
Weis, Peta 

Werrell, Jodie 

Weston-Webb, Katrina 

White, Gregory 
White, Rebecca 

Williamson, Chris 

Wilson, Alex 

Wilson, Jamie 
Wolfe, Thomas 

Wongreyova, Petra 

Wood, John 

Wood, Laurence 

Wren, Melissa 
Wright, Hayley 

Yang, Cindy 

Young, Ashleigh 

Young, Lucas Jasper 
Zaghini, Kerry 

 

 

Nipper Parent 

Bolger, Chris 

Butler, Brett 
Dopper, Paul 

Khanna, Khushinka 

Lockhart, James 

Phillips, Daniel 
Symonds, Jemma 

 

Non-Member participant 

(Community Member) 
Bell, Jarrad 

 

Leave/Restricted 

Eussen, Arnold 
Harvey, Mark 

Roe, Mitchell 

Sealey, Matthew 

 
Probationary 

Chatwin, Hudson 

Chatwin, Tarsha 

Chong, Lennox 
Coulston, Adam 

Moore, Nathan 

Taylor, Linda 

Whiteman, Jackson 

 
Under 14 

Allport, Eloise 

Bailey, Pepper 

Barker, Georjia 
Baxter, Ty 

Bentson, Sage 

Channell, Payton 

Chong, Amali 
De Chhimba, Charlize 

Fox, Maisy 

Fraser, Rahni 

Middleton, Lucas 
Murphy, Eloise 

Numrich, Henry 

Robinson, Asaiah 

Roy, Anik 
Sabitov, Timur 

Sealey, Jacob 

Veraa, Rocco 

Zaghini, Jessica 
 

Under 13 

Allen, Lua 

De Broughe, Ash 

Dredge, Maddox 
Duckett, Myah 

Edgar, Sam 

Forbes, Harper 

Ford, Willow 
Fortescue, Emma 

Griffiths, Mila 

Griffiths, Oscar 

Hodgson, Ruby 

Hunt, Slater 

Khanna, Lokesh 
Klein, Mars 

Kumlin, Madeleine 

Maitre, Bastien 

Maitre, Lowan 
McMaugh, Matthew 

Navin, Leena 

Ohtake, Cecilia 

Paramonov, Anastasia 
Robinson, Simeon 

Samuel, Jordan 

 

Under 12 
Alegria, Lucas 

Beveridge, Koby 

Butler, Rhys 

Churchett, Caleb 
Davies, Jenson 

De Chhimba, Meggie 

Fa'Avale, Auro 

Forbes, Mia 
Garner, Millie 

Hayward-Turner, Willow 

Kumar, Prayan 

Kumlin, Tilde 

McEnearney, Geoffrey 
Middleton, Lara 

Mudge, Angus 

Murphy, Sofia 

Phillips, Judah 
Rezek, Kerys 

Richardson, Sam 

Rikihana, Lily-Grace 

Ritchie, Dylan 
Rowe, Phoenix 

Sabitov, Alexander 

Sams, Byron 

Scott, Willow 
Sealey, Luke 

Skelley, Joshua 

Te Heu Heu Tukino, Koa 

Thomas, Zavier 
Tidey, Zali 

Veraa, Dante 

Veraa, Dario 

 
Under 11 

Allen, Sunny 

Butler, Teah 

Clark, Rayah 

Core, Parker 
Delaney, Finnegan 

Devisser, Chloe 

Duckett, Noah 

Easton, Angelina 
Eccles, Aleesha 

Fortescue, Brooke 

Gillon, Lena 

Griffiths, Eden 

Hudson, Rosie 

Hurley, Jovi 
Klein, York 

Mathew, Matrix 

Morton, Aria 

Oliver, Sienna 
Paramonov, Ksenia 

Phillips, Stanley 

Ritorto, Stella 

Roberts, Cassian 
Robinson, Anabel 

Saciri, Sailor 

Samuel, Isaac 

Scott, Arabella 
Stebbins, Maya 

Stening, Xinger 

 

Under 10 
Alegria, Hunter 

Allen, Jace 

Ambrose, Nika 

Andersson, Elke 
Armanwood, Ayla 

Brinkmann, Oliver 

Butler, Anika 

Butler, Tilly 

Dopper, Otis 
Du Plessis, Franco 

Duffy, Charlotte 

Fa'Avale, Felani 

Fahey, Lucy 
Gay, Josephine 

Hart, Mollie 

Hayward-Turner, Lewis 

Herzberg, Luca 
Hunia, Caely 

Hvass, Paige 

Jackson, Layla 

Judd, Willamena 
Klein, Banjo 

Lacey, Tyler 

Le Roux, Christiaan 

Maleham, Lacey 
Marais, Joel 

Mccafferty, Banjo 

Nagy, Charlotte 

Ohtake, Ash 
Quill, Billy 

Roberts, Leilani 

Roy, Anushka 

Schreiber, Benji 

Small, Finn 
Smith, Sylvie 

Stebbins, Skye 

Stebbins, Summer 

Taylor, Hazel 
Tidey, Alexis 

Veraa, Luka 

White, Sampson 
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Membership 2024-2025 cont. 
Wilson, Ayla 

 

Under 9 
Sutcliffe, Elle 

Andersson, Imala 

Armes, Henry 

Barnish, Frederick 
Barnish, Isabela 

Benavides, Samuel 

Beutel, Charlotte 

Booth, Evie 
Clark, Skylar 

Davies, Delilah 

Davis, Billie 

Day, Franklin 
Doogan, Cuba 

Dunn, Dashael 

Easton, Mercedes 

Ellis, Harvey 
Forbes, Henley 

Gillon, Reuben 

Gooch, Jonty 

Gostelow, Jack 
Griffin, Ruby 

Hunia, Lilah 

Hunia, Toby 

Hynes, Henry 

Jaszewski, James 
Katene, Axel 

Kent, Madeleine 

Lankshear, Lara 

Liston, Matilda 
Major, Jasper 

Martiensen, Ella 

Mccafferty, Angus 

Mitchell, Remy 
Mudge, Aria 

Musgrave, Charlotte 

Oliver, Ester 

Paramonov, Solomon 
Prescott, Archie 

Proctor, Poppy 

Robinson, Beau 

Robinson, Solomon 
Rowe, Luca 

Saunders, Ned 

Saunders, Owen 

Skelley, Charli 
Stafford, Lenny 

Taylor, Bowen 

Te Heu Heu Tukino, Jack 

Toomey, Saniah 

Turner, Luke 
Turner, Will 

Vaessen, Mateo 

Walker, Harlen 

Webb, Spencer 
Whitehouse, Vivienne 

 

Under 8 

Armstrong, Finn 

Auzino, Naia 
Bateman, Audrey-Lee 

Beamish, Sage 

Bell, Lola 

Bolger, Stella 
Brinckley, Emma 

Carter, Bryce 

Clark, Nikita 

Cwaczko, Darskia 
Dawson, Flinders 

Delaney, Maeve 

Dephoff, Evie 

Devisser, Bonnie 
Emmerson, Lakey 

Fahey, Ethan 

Field, Asher 

Field, Billy 
Gay, Eden 

Gemmell, Piper 

Griffin, Koa 

Grove, Zephyr 
Hanna, John 

Hudson, Hugh 

Hurley, Flynn 

Hvass, Lachlan 

Judd, Elliott 
Kane, Franklin 

Kumar, Elizabeth 

Lacey, Caleb 

Lankshear, Levi 
Litwinczuk, Parker 

Logan, Hamish 

Mactaggart, Harriet 

Maleham, Jesse 
Martin, Harry 

Mcdonald, Max 

Mclaren, Misha 

Mclean, Ned 
Moloney, Zachary 

Morton, Elle 

Nagy, Margot 

Nieuwoudt, Lea 
Norval, Isla 

Ohtake, Liliana 

Prescott, Zara 

Purchase, Darcy 
Richards, Jacob 

Rikihana, Amaia 

Ritchie, Zoe 

Roberts, Chilli 

Russell, Harrison 
Schreiber, Hugo 

Scott, Charlotte 

Small, Ziggy 

Sonnekus, Aiden 
Spits, Bowie 

Staples, Shelby 

Stubbs, Bodhi 

Thomas, Zayden 

Threlfo, Oliver 
Weatherall, Koa 

Webb, Annabelle 

White, Ella 

Williamson, Nate 
Wilson, Wolf 

Young, Maggie 

 

Under 7 
Hayward-Turner, Mackenzie 

Henry, Willow 

Hurley, Addison 

Jaszewski, Samuel 
Jones, Indi 

Katene, Maya 

Kent, Edith 

Le Roux, Marcel 
Lewis, Eden 

Liston, Frankie 

Litwinczuk, Malachi 

Lopez, Catalina 
Loring, Halle 

Lyne, Amelia 

Mackay, Olive 

Mactaggart, Phoebe 

Maitre, Aubry 
Matterson, Carter 

Mcenearney, Josie 

Mclaren, Indigo 

Meers, Henrik 
Melhem, Mia 

Monro, Harvey 

Newman, Lilah 

Norval, Sonny 
Ogrady, Reef 

Purchase, Madeline 

Quill, Ellie 

Rea, Jovi 
Ritorto, Jack 

Robinson, Shiloh 

Roe, Remy 

Schutz, Oscar 
Smith, Dusty 

Stafford, Lucy 

Staples, Zara 

Stewart, Raiden 
Symonds, Taylor 

Taylor, Everly 

Taylor, Miles 

Threlfo, James 

Vahua, Theios 
Webber, Rocket 

Williamson, Aiden 

Williamson, Cooper 

Wood, Hendrix 
Young, Pippa 

 

Under 6 

Ambrose, Ivy 

Armstrong, Rose 
Askew, Ella 

Barnes, Luca 

Barnish, Charles 

Beckerleg, Liam 
Beutel, Henry 

Booth, Ollie 

Chibel, Maya 

Cooney, Cove 
Davis, Georgia 

Dawson, Marley 

Devisser, Elke 

Gemmell, Mackenzie 
Gooch, Jagger 

Gostelow, Lila 

Harvey, Penelope 

Hodgson, Josie 
Judd, Fletcher 

Kane, Finlay 

Koleczko, Frankie 

Lacey, Ashton 
Lewis, Nash 

Lockhart, Noa 

Logan, Lachlan 

Martin, Olly 

Mcdonald, Eddie 
Mclaren, Gaia 

Mitchell, Zara 

Monro, Ada 

Musgrave, Madison 
Nieuwoudt, Eli 

Ogrady, Eve 

Parris, Grayson 

Prescott, Poppy 
Richards, Aidan 

Robbins, Rosamund 

Roberts, Asher 

Roe, Louie 
Rowe, Maia 

Scales, Jayden 

Shiota, Issay 

Skelley, Jackson 
Small, Olly 

Sonnekus, Lilly 

Stockwell, Aston 

Stones, Elkie 
Stubbs, Archie 

Sutcliffe, Bronte 

Te Riini, Kupa 

Te Riini, Taika 

Thomas, Talan 
Trott, Mila 

Walker, Remi 

Webber, Huski 

Wolfe, Willow 
Wright, Lindsey 
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Treasurer’s Report 
 

The 2024-25 Financial Year saw the club continue its steady operations whilst  

ensuring the increasing compliance requirements are achieved and maintained on an 

ongoing basis. The club reported a consistent financial result, ahead of budget and 

continues to be in a strong financial position. Further, through their continued  

support and well-run business, the Supporters Club have continued to fund the Surf 

Club in a collaborative manner. 

Once again, the ongoing support provided by our Supporters Club and valued  

partners has enabled us to continue much improved levels of revenue whilst  

maintaining prudent levels of expenses, ensuring the increasing compliance  

requirements are met. We appreciate and thank the Supporters Club for the  

invaluable contribution they make to the Surf Club each year.  

In addition to providing essential financial support that allows the Surf Club to operate, the Supporters Club plays 

an important role in maintaining our physical assets plus joins with us in sourcing and maintaining our major  

financial partners.  

Both clubs continue to be in an excellent financial position and this provides a strong base for the future of both 

clubs. 

We are grateful to our sponsors who provide valuable financial support that allows us to maintain our Club  

facilities and investment in essential equipment: thank you. 

I refer members to the financial report section of the annual report for a more detailed understanding of the Clubs 
financial performance over the past financial year.  
 
Scott Lyall 
Treasurer 
 
 

 

Scott stepped down from the Palm Beach Surf Life Saving Club Executive Board in April 2025 due to increasing  

family commitments. We sincerely thank Scott for his time, knowledge and accounting skills over the last three  

seasons. Scott’s financial knowledge has been invaluable since he joined the Board and his presence will be missed. 

Treasurer, Scott Lyall 
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Club Captain’s Report 

Another busy year has concluded, and from a professional perspective, our Palmy family is in a significantly better position 
than at the beginning of the season.  
 
We encountered some challenges due to difficult transitions in our administration; 
however, these issues were promptly addressed by our Operations Committee and 
Board with a positive approach. Subsequently, we focused on consolidating our efforts 
and excelling in what Palmy does best, collaborating to navigate through another 
challenging yet productive season. This progress was evident among our nippers, SRCs, 
new Bronzies, dedicated patrolling teams, and their respective Patrol Captains.  
 
Additionally, our success was supported by key figures such as our IRB Captain/Club 
Captain, Vice Club Captain, First Aid Officer, and Gear Steward, who are well-known 
and respected by all members. 
 
Some of our Key Achievements, included: 

• Our Sports Performance program, developed to deliver an inclusive program 
for members ranging from nippers to patrollers.  

• The appointment of the Surf Club General Manager, Peta Lawlor, and the appointment of Senior Administrative and 
separate Training Development roles.  

• Five new Silver Medalion Patrol Captains.  

• All of our dedicated members, working together to support preparations and recovery from ex-Tropical Cyclone Alfred. 
 
Some challenges, lessons and learnings we experienced included paid administration staff departures resulting in some 
challenges, but also identified the depth of experience and commitment that our members displayed to ensure the priority of 
patrolling our beaches was maintained consistently. Some challenges with education and proficiency delivery and 
administration ensured that deeper collaborations, and increased communication with the Branch were observed. 
 
Looking forward to the new season we will focus on developing and implementing skills, proficiency, and member 
development programs. Additionally, a new season of surf sports programs will encompass patroller skills development and 
fitness, as well as competitive and masters members.  
 
Greg Clark & Ben Tidey 
Club Captains 

Club Captains Ben Tidey & Greg Clark 



 

P
alm

 B
each

 (Q
ld

) Su
rf Life Savin

g C
lu

b
 In

c 95
th

 A
n

n
u

al R
ep

o
rt 2

0
24

-2
0

2
5

 
P

age 1
5

 Palm Beach (Qld) Surf Life Saving Club Inc 95th Annual Report 2024-2025 

Page 15 

Beach Statistics 2024-2025 



 

P
alm

 B
each

 (Q
ld

) Su
rf Life Savin

g C
lu

b
 In

c 95
th

 A
n

n
u

al R
ep

o
rt 2

0
24

-2
0

2
5

 
P

age 1
6

 Palm Beach (Qld) Surf Life Saving Club Inc 95th Annual Report 2024-2025 

Page 16 

Beach Statistics 2024-2025 



 

P
alm

 B
each

 (Q
ld

) Su
rf Life Savin

g C
lu

b
 In

c 95
th

 A
n

n
u

al R
ep

o
rt 2

0
24

-2
0

2
5

 
P

age 1
7

 

Beach Statistics 2024-2025 

Palm Beach (Qld) Surf Life Saving Club Inc 95th Annual Report 2024-2025 

Page 17 



 

P
alm

 B
each

 (Q
ld

) Su
rf Life Savin

g C
lu

b
 In

c 95
th

 A
n

n
u

al R
ep

o
rt 2

0
24

-2
0

2
5

 
P

age 1
8

 

Beach Statistics 2024-2025 

Palm Beach (Qld) Surf Life Saving Club Inc 95th Annual Report 2024-2025 

Page 18 



 

Palm Beach (Qld) Surf Life Saving Club Inc 95th Annual Report 2024-2025 
Page 19 

 

Member Patrol Hours 2024-2025 

Member Name Hours 

Alford, Summa 5.5 

Allport, Eloise 24.73 

Allport, Isaac 42.18 

Allport, Matthew 49.56 

Allport, Maxwell 28 

Anderson, Billy 5.93 

Anderson, Cooper 25.75 

Anderson, Lee 43.62 

Baddeley, Catherine 42.44 

Bailey, Lilly 28 

Bailey, Pepper 39 

Baker, Debbie 46.12 

Barber, Matthew 42 

Batton, Lucas 32.42 

Baxter, Ty 39.34 

Bell, Michelle 28.83 

Belleli, Daniel 30.03 

Bentson, Sage 23.5 

Bentson, Willa 4.5 

Blane, Raymond 37.91 

Bloor, Karen 4.5 

Bourke, Anthony 47.13 

Burgess, Michael 9.47 

Callard, Wendy 32.98 

Campbell, Jake 4.5 

Carroll, Anna 34.12 

Carroll, Darcy 4.75 

Carroll, David 32.64 

Channell, Payton 34.4 

Chibel, Dominique 38.94 

Churchett, Craig 20.79 

Clancy, Joshua 24 

Clark, Gregory 65.16 

Cooke, Bridie 10.25 

Cooper, Rose 8.98 

Cox, Ben 42.98 

Cox, Greg 77.62 

Cox, Isabella 15.53 

Daley, Cora 1.92 

Dawson, Samantha 5.43 

De Broughe, Oliver 11.5 

De Chhimba, Charlize 37.01 

Dredge, Rohan 32.15 

Dredge, Zarriah 23.58 

Member Name Hours 

Evans, Benedict 43.63 

Farrell, Mary 35.4 

Finucan, Sharon 66.31 

Fox, Maisy 21.67 

Fraser, Rahni 9.22 

Gill, Benjamin 35.28 

Gillis, Ava 23.5 

Gilmour, Mitchell 5.5 

Gordon, Stuart 57.92 

Grant, Peter 15.84 

Griffiths, Harry 49.74 

Hams, Lucille 14.55 

Harvey, Colin 75.99 

Harvey, Mark 49.43 

Hearn, Jordana 12.5 

Hempsall, Joanne 32.47 

Hewitt, Abby 12.97 

Hitchen, John 38.5 

Holstein, Finnegan 21.23 

Howe, David 44.08 

Ince, Donovan 51.48 

Jackson, Adam 50.33 

Jaques, Renee 32.8 

Jones-Dean, Dylan 52.22 

Judd, Jo 32.5 

Kerr, Chloe 18.5 

Kerrison, Matthew 25.22 

Khanna, Khushinka 23.67 

Langton, Jennifer 35.83 

Leech, Cody 31.36 

Lincoln, Matthew 44.24 

Logan, Taite 35.34 

Loomes, Susan 47.37 

Loveday, Urban 12.32 

Maitre, Bertrand 46.46 

Maitre, Miro 50.96 

Major, Leanne 38.13 

Marchand, Phillip 57.5 

Martin, Ziggy 28.93 

Matchett, Timothy 27.78 

Mckernan, Lachlan 15.25 

Merrett, Kane 52.51 

Mocke, Oliver 25.09 

Morgan, Samuel 14.67 
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Member Patrol Hours 2024-2025 cont. 
Member Name Hours 

Mulkerrins, Cole 52.62 

Murphy, Elizabeth 15.75 

Murphy, Eloise 71.55 

Murphy, Scott 19.52 

Nagai, Yuito 27.28 

New, Teagan 4.52 

Numrich, Henry 14.5 

Numrich, Tom 15.5 

O'Brien, Marc 43.47 

O'Neill, Scott 36.52 

Opray, Luke 38.06 

Parker, Treena 57.5 

Perugino, Angelina 3.18 

Perugino, Nicolas 8.73 

Pike, Samuel 9 

Pilarski, Simon 4.5 

Pooley, Grace 36.92 

Pooley, Gregory 48.35 

Pooley, James 38.98 

Pringault, Brayten 18 

Ramnarain, Coco 20.8 

Rapallo, Antony 4.65 

Rawlings, Peter 11.13 

Read, Erica 40.9 

Richards, Kate 35.73 

Richardson, Kora 13.52 

Riley, Donna 32 

Robinson, Asaiah 13.22 

Ruby, Slater 5 

Ruff, Louise 38.18 

Ryan, Glen 45.57 

Sabitov, Timur 42.55 

Schmarr, Cooper 23.34 

Sealey, Jacob 25.75 

Sealey, Matthew 40.84 

Skuse, Lachlan 14.8 

Stanojevic, Alec 2.47 

Te Heu Heu Tukino, Minka 6.5 

Thompson, Benjamin 15.67 

Thompson, Joel 6.93 

Tidey, Benjamin 52.78 

Tidey, Digby 73.77 

Trethewey, Codey 80.1 

Tyrrell, Lily May 6.42 

Member Name Hours 

Veling, Jarrah 45.04 

Viljoen, Tessa 150.65 

Walewski, Ola 20.42 

Walker, Lachlan 27.92 

Walker, Timothy 67.2 

Walton, Brayden 38.69 

Walton, Geoffrey 56.84 

White, Jasco 13.7 

Whitehouse, Rob 37.98 

Wood-Collier, Callie 41.51 

Wood-Collier, Mark 41.51 
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Education Update 
 

Lifesaving training is an ever-evolving and continuous journey of improvement. At the club level, we are currently 

undergoing a period of change—re-evaluating how we deliver training, what we focus on, and how we prioritise 

the needs of our members. 

 

We extend our heartfelt thanks to Donna Riley for her dedication and contribution as Chief Training Officer in the 
early part of the season. Her time, commitment, and effort have been truly valued by the club. 

 

Although we faced limitations in delivering a full schedule of courses this season, we were proud to still offer 
essential training for our members. A full list of courses is included over the page.  

 

We also sincerely thank our education “rock” Richard Andrews for continually stepping in year upon year, providing 
critical support in the training space. Richard’s work in finalising Skills Maintenance sessions and ensuring our 
members remained proficient has been instrumental in keeping our beaches safe and patrolled. Thank you 
sincerely Richard. 

 

Finally we would like to thank and acknowledge all members who gave up their time to help train and assess during 

the season, including the members who were able to support the team in the endorsed delegate arena.  
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Senior Awards Gained in 2024-2025 

50 Year Long Service 

Johnson, Warren 

 

10 Year National Patrol Service 

Pike, Samuel 

 

5 Year National Patrol  Service 

Allport, Isaac 

Evans, Benedict 

Finucan, Sharon 

 

Bronze Medallion 
Alford, Summa 

Bruce, Daniel 

Dredge, Zarriah 

Egan, Andrea 

Hams, Lucille 

Harry, Mitchell 

Inoue, Ryuichi 

Jones, Bailan 

Kerr, Chloe 

Leech, Cody 

Logan, Taite 

Mackenzie, Ziggy 

Maniwa, Sai 

Martin, Will 

Nagai, Yuito 

New, Teagan 

Read, Hunter 

Scott, Angus 

Tyrrell, Lily May 

Veling, Jarrah 

Warriner, Lewis 

White, Jasco 

Wood, John 

Wright, Dane 

Yang, Cindy 

 

Silver Medallion Patrol Captain 

Blane, Raymond 

Maitre, Bertrand 

Merrett, Kane 

Tidey, Benjamin 

 

 

Advanced Resuscitation 

Techniques (ART) 

Andrews, Richard 

Batton, Lucas 

Dredge, Zarriah 

Monaghan, Leesa 

Stanojevic, Alec 

Tidey, Benjamin 

 

First Aid 

Allport, Isaac 

Andrews, Richard 

Barber, Matthew 

Batton, Lucas 

Dredge, Zarriah 

Edgar, Simon 

MacTaggart, James 

Monaghan, Leesa 

Rezek, Mary 

Rezek, Kurt 

Sabitov, Renat 

Scott, Lisa 

Small, Dave 

Tidey, Benjamin 

Viljoen, Tessa 

 

IRB Crew  

Bailey, Lilly 

Dredge, Rohan 

Dredge, Zarriah 

Pilarski, Simon 

Skuse, Lachlan 

Walker, Timothy 

Whitehouse, Rob 

 

IRB Driver - Silver Medallion 
Dredge, Rohan 

Richards, Kate 

 

QLD SSV Operator Induction 
Allport, Maxwell 

Allport, Isaac 

Bloor, Karen 

Bourke, Anthony 

Callard, Wendy 

Carroll, Anna 

Clark, Gregory 

Gordon, Stuart 

Harvey, Mark 

Harvey, Colin 

Howe, David 

Ince, Donovan 

Jensen, Simon 

Kerr, Chloe 

Kerrison, Matthew 

Langton, Jennifer 

Major, Leanne 

Marchand, Phillip 

Matchett, Timothy 

O'Neill, Scott 

Opray, Luke 

Perugino, Nicolas 

Pike, Samuel 

Rapallo, Antony 

Roberts, Shelley 

Ruff, Louise 

Tidey, Benjamin 

Walker, Timothy 

 

Resuscitation (CPR) 

Allport, Isaac 

Andrews, Richard 

Barber, Matthew 

Batton, Lucas 

Dredge, Zarriah 

Edgar, Simon 

Kent, Alyssa 

MacTaggart, James 

Mocke, Oliver 

Monaghan, Leesa 

Rezek, Mary 

Rezek, Kurt 

Sabitov, Renat 

Scott, Lisa 

Small, Dave 

Tidey, Benjamin 

Viljoen, Tessa 

Werrell, Jodie 

 

Rescue Water Craft Operator 

Certificate 

Allport, Isaac 

 

Surf Rescue Certificate  

(CPR endorsed) 

Allport, Eloise 

Bailey, Pepper 

Baxter, Ty 
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Senior Awards Gained in 2024-25 cont. 

Bentson, Sage 

Beveridge, Robert 

Channell, Payton 

Dawson, Samantha 

De Chhimba, Charlize 

Edgar, Simon 

Fox, Maisy 

Fraser, Rahni 

Kent, Alyssa 

MacTaggart, James 

Middleton, Lucas 

Monaghan, Leesa 

Murphy, Eloise 

Numrich, Tom 

Numrich, Henry 

Ramnarain, Coco 

Rezek, Kurt 

Robinson, Asaiah 

Sabitov, Renat 

Sabitov, Timur 

Sams, Gerard 

Sealey, Jacob 

Small, Dave 

Veraa, Rocco 

Walewski, Ola 

Zaghini, Jessica 

 

Assessor Bronze Medallion 

Barber, Matthew 

 

Endorsed Delegate - ART 

Barber, Matthew 

Harvey, Colin 

 

QLD Governance Training 

Cox, Greg 

Stebbins, Danielle 

QLD Govt Wireless Network 

Induction 

Allport, Isaac 

Bailey, Pepper 

Blane, Raymond 

Clark, Gregory 

Cox, Ben 

Dredge, Zarriah 

Martin, Ziggy 

Morgan, Samuel 

Mulkerrins, Cole 

Ruff, Louise 

Sealey, Joshua 

Small, Dave 

Tidey, Benjamin 

Walton, Geoffrey 

Wood-Collier, Callie 

 

Surf Risk Rating 

Dredge, Zarriah 

Kerrison, Matthew 

Lawlor, Peta 

Maitre, Bertrand 

Merrett, Kane 

Morgan, Samuel 

Opray, Luke 

Rawlings, Peter 

Te Heu Heu Tukino, Colleen 

Viljoen, Tessa 

 

TAF Induction 
Barber, Matthew 

Belleli, Daniel 

Blane, Raymond 

Churchett, Craig 

Dredge, Zarriah 

Fox, Christie 

Harry, Mitchell 

Howe, David 

Judd, Jo 

Murphy, Scott 

Pike, Samuel 

Sealey, Joshua 

Skelley, Bayden 

 

IRB TAF v9 

Allport, Isaac 

Andrews, Richard 

Morgan, Samuel 

 

Volunteer Leadership Online 

Module 

Dredge, Zarriah 

 

National Women’s Mentoring 

Program Mentor 

Carroll, Anna 

Loomes, Susan 

 

Point Danger Branch U18 Junior 

Lifesaver of the Year 

Jones-Dean, Dylan  (pictured below left) 

 

Point Danger Branch Recognition 

of Service in Surf Lifesaving 

Farrell, Mary  (pictured below right) 
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Sports Performance Program 

 

 
It has been an incredible season for Surf Sports at our club 
Palmy, with achievements and progress to be proud of 
across all age groups. From beach to the board and 
everything in between, our members have showcased 
commitment, courage, and club spirit. 
 
 
Nipper Development 
 
Our Nippers program continues to go from strength to 
strength. This season, we’ve seen our youngest members 
grow in skill, strength and confidence - not only in the 
water but also in their team-work, resilience, and 
sportsmanship. Their enthusiasm has been inspiring, and 
the foundational skills they’ve developed have created a 
strong platform for the future competitive success and 
lifesaving excellence. 
 
 
Emerging Talent 
 
A special congratulations goes out to our developing 
members who are rising through the ranks and embracing new challenges. Their dedication to training and 
competition has been evident, and many have stepped up in leadership roles within their age groups. These 
members are proving to be the future of our club, and we are incredibly proud of their progress and persistence. 
 
 
Competition Highlights 
 
We had a strong presence at both Branch and Aussies this year (State cancelled) with our athletes not just 
participating but challenging some of the very best in the Nation. Every competitor wore our blues with pride and 
demonstrated grit, determination, and exceptional sportsmanship. Whether on the sand, in the surf, or during 
team relays, our members consistently gave it their all and made a lasting impression. 
 
 
Thank you  
 
None of this would be possible without the tireless work of our coaches, team managers, water safety and our 
parent volunteers. Your support, encouragement and behind the scenes effort have helped our athletes thrive and 
our programs flourish. 
 
This has been a season marked by growth, unity and a competitive spirit. As we look ahead, we’re excited to build 
on this momentum - supporting our athletes to push their limits reach new milestones, and represent our club 
with pride. 
 
Great work team - see you on the sand soon. 
 
Coach Lou Ruff 
 

 

 

Coaches Jack Carroll, Lou Ruff and Coach Wal— 

Colleen Te Heu Heu Tukino 
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Seniors and Masters Carnival Results 

World Surf Life Saving Championships 2024 

 

Louise Ruff (pictured below, far right) 

• Gold in Board  

• Gold in Ski Relay 

• Silver in Board Rescue  

• Silver in Board Relay 

• Bronze in Taplin 

 

Ben Cox 

• Gold in Board Race 

• Gold in Board Rescue 

• Gold in Ironman  

• Silver in Surf Race 

 

Greg Cox 

• Gold in Board Rescue 

• Silver in Board Race 

• Silver in Ironman  

• Silver in Surf Race 

 

 

Our club was also represented in the volunteer crew by the 

following members who reported having an amazing 

experience.  

 

Anna Carroll (pictured below left) 

Brayden Walton (pictured below right) 

Geoff Walton 

 

Not often do we get to be part of the world stage when it comes to lifesaving. Well this season we did with the Gold Coast 

privileged to host the World Championships held in August 2024.  

Our members were part of the this event and represent volunteering in their respective disciplines, as well as be part of the 

workforce and behind the scenes team. Palmy also hosted a team from the Marine Surf Boat Rowing team from South Africa 

in our dorms.  It was great to be part of a spectacular event. 

Palm Beach SLSC Masters competitors performed extremely well at World standard and achieved the following incredible 

results: 
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Youth Development Report 
 

The 2024/2025 season was one of growth, connection and high achievement for 

the Youth Development Program. Our youth members, aged 14–17, 

demonstrated maturity, dedication, and strong surf lifesaving values across 

patrols, surf sports, training, and community service. Their presence within the 

club is growing in strength and impact, with young people stepping into 

leadership, mentoring, and operational roles. 

 

Key Achievements 

• 20 youth members gained their Surf Rescue Certificate (SRC) and 

commenced patrol duties. 

• 17 youth successfully completed their Bronze Medallion, becoming full 

patrolling members. 

• Youth members contributed over 1,340 patrol hours, many exceeding their 

minimum requirements. 

• Strong representation and success at carnivals, including Branch Championships: Medals across U14–U17 

board, sprint, and relay events. 

• Zarriah Dredge and Digby Tidey were recognised as Point Danger Branch Youth of the Month recipients for 

their outstanding contribution and commitment to surf lifesaving. 

• Introduction of a modified Youth Club Champs and recognition awards to celebrate achievement, team 

spirit, and club contribution. 

 
Palm Beach Club Awards – Youth Division 

• Under 14 Junior Lifesaver of the Year: Eloise Murphy 

• Youth Volunteer of the Year: Asaiah Robinson 

• Under 14 Junior Lifesaver of the Year (joint): Digby Tidey & Harry Griffiths 

• Encouragement Award: Timur Sabitova 

 

Challenges and Lessons Learned 

• Retaining youth beyond the SRC stage requires strong engagement opportunities. This season highlighted 

the value of personal connection, leadership pathways, and visible recognition. 

• Identified the need for earlier mentoring and clearer transitions between Nippers, youth and senior club 

life to retain enthusiasm and continuity. 

• Ongoing collaboration with the Training & Education Team was crucial for consistent support through SRC, 

Bronze Medallion, First Aid, and IRB pathways. 

• Improve pre-season preparedness by establishing clearer communication channels and earlier engagement 

with youth members and families, ensuring we are well-positioned ahead of the season launch. 

Christie Fox 
Youth Development Coordinator  



 

Palm Beach (Qld) Surf Life Saving Club Inc 95th Annual Report 2024-2025 
Page 27 

 

Youth Development Report cont. 

 

Collaborations 

• Supported the Albatross Nippers Program for people of all abilities in surf lifesaving. 

• Partnered with Patrol Captains to create safe, supportive patrol environments for youth to learn and 

contribute meaningfully. 

• Worked alongside the Junior Activities Team to connect youth with Age Managers and provide mentoring 

roles on Saturday mornings. 

• Grateful for the support of our Surf Sports Coaches who provided tailored guidance and encouragement to 

youth competitors. 

 

Looking Forward – 2025/2026 

• Launch a Youth Advisory Panel to give youth members greater input into club planning and social events. 

• Expand the Leadership and Mentoring Framework, including Point Danger Branch training workshops and 

formal leadership roles. 

• Strengthen retention strategies, ensuring U14–U17 members feel connected, valued, and supported post-

Nippers. 

• Increase competition development sessions, especially during the off-season, for youth interested in high-

performance surf sports. 

• Continue celebrating youth contributions through targeted events, awards, and public recognition. 

Thank you to all youth members, families, patrol captains, coaches, and club leaders who contributed to such a 

successful and positive season. Our future is bright with this exceptional group of young lifesavers coming through 

the ranks. 

 

Palm Beach Youth with Albatross Nippers, Mermaid Beach 
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Junior Activities Report 
 

I want to personally thank all the volunteers that helped in every session, in every way, in 

every role, on every morning throughout our season. Our Club cannot operate without a 

FULL LIST of amazing volunteers to help serve all our Nipper age groups. EVERY one that 

committed to a role this season are so valuable to what we’re trying to do for our Palmy 

Nippers Family!!  

 

We want to hugely thank the following Junior Committee volunteers for this season:  

 

Age Managers: 

U6: Bayden Skelley, Lexi Skelley, Jo Judd, Phil Judd, Zarriah Dredge, Mitch Roe  

U7: Dan McCafferty, Ray Blane, Laurence Wood, Peter Kent, Jess Roe, Lauren Ellis  

U8: Nick Martin, Kate Hudson, Alyssa Kent, Myf Morton, Debbie Scott, 

Greg White, Matt Brinkley, Peter Hanna, Sharna Field  

U9: Ryan Ellis, Jason Turner, Robert Whitehouse, Lucy Proctor, Rose 

Cooper, Scott Doogan, Paul Dopper  

U10: Emily Carroll, Danielle Stebbins, Adam Jackson, Adam Fahey 

U11: Greg Clark, Peter Stebbins, Holland Robinson 

U12: Scott Murphy, Craig Churchett, Petra Wongrey  

U13: Codey Trethewey, Anise Webb, Charlotte Sutch  

U14: Jeff Baxter, Christie Fox  

 
Support Junior Roles: 

Set Up Coordinators: Laura Griffiths, Josh Sealey, Leesa Monaghan  

Team Managers: Laura Griffiths Abby Hewitt, Sam Litwinzcuk   

Carnival Coordinators: Leesa Monaghan, Laura Griffiths  

Water Safety Coordinators: Rohan Dredge, Ben Tidey, Jason Hvass, Liz Murphy   

Junior Secretary: Leesa Monaghan  

Deputy JAC: Leesa Monaghan, Christie Fox 

 
Massive thanks to our amazing Palmy Nipper Coaches: Jack Carroll, Louise Ruff, led by Coach Wal, (Colleen Te Heu 

Heu Tukino). We’ve been begging to get Coach Wal as our Club Nippers coach for years, so to have her finally doing 

what she does with our training plan and coaches, at Saturday Nippers and weekly training, is NEXT LEVEL!!!  What 

at coaching team!!! Plus all the Palmy parents that came to the sessions to help on water safety for our nippers. 

Our partnership with coaching and Saturday nippers is a fantastic collaboration, but super keen to ramp our 

competitive Palmy spirit over the next few seasons in taking our Palmy Family to loads more carnival experiences!!  

See the Sports Performance section of this report.  

 

EVERY adult Palmy volunteer is super 

amazing because they are giving their own 

time and energy to our Palmy Nippers, and I 

want to make special mention to our Age 

Managers Team for the amazing amount of 

time this crew put into so many areas for our 

Nipper group.  From planning, to facilitating, 

to reflecting and evaluating sessions, to 

make sure every nipper, in every group is 

Junior Activities Chair,  
Josh Sealey 
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Junior Activities Report cont’d 

We also want to thank our amazing water safety team that helped in every session 

this season. These are the parents, older siblings and older Nippers that have 

completed their SRC or Bronze Medallion course that make our water activities safe 

for our Nippers. They’re the ones swimming out with our Nippers, helping on 

boards and being in the water for the wades.  

 

Special mention to our season Water Safety leaders including Rohan Dredge, Ben 

Tidey, Jason Hvass and Liz Murphy.  You guys have been amazing keeping all our 

Saturday Nippers sessions controlled and safe for all of our Palmy family.  These 

guys are the BEST!!!!  

 

Let’s keep up-skilling and building our parent Water Safety team for the next few seasons. Our goal was to make 

sure every Nipper and all families enjoyed their Saturday mornings together building friendships and confidence in 

the ocean. Our season had heaps of fun and enjoyable moments, some down 

moments in the weather, some amazing competitive moments, and overall, a 

memorable season.  

 
Some key points: 
 
Membership & Participation 
• We welcomed over 400 junior members this season, with an excellent 

weekly average of Nippers hitting the beach each week – an incredible show 
of enthusiasm and commitment! 

• From our youngest first time carnival competitor in U8s to the U14s competing at Aussies, it’s been inspiring to 
see such strong representation, attendance, behaviour, and performance across all age groups. Their success 
was a testament to the club’s commitment to training, developing their skills, and promoting a strong sense of 
community and sportsmanship. 

 
A special shout out to our U8s competing in their first carnivals – you did us proud! With strong age groups coming 
through, we’re excited to see even more participation in the seasons ahead. 
  
Courses & Development 
• Officials Course: While parent involvement was steady, we see great potential to increase engagement earlier 

next season when Branch courses begin. 
• Water Safety Course: A big success with both U14s and parents taking 

part – the intensive format worked brilliantly. We’re excited to 
expand these opportunities in 2025/26. 

 
Many parents expressed interest in end-of-season courses, so we’ll work 
on re-engaging early to support their involvement. 
  
Club Events & Admin 
• Saturday Nippers continues to be a highlight – full of happy faces, 

proud moments, and kids transforming fear into confidence and joy in 
the ocean. 

• The BBQ was a consistent hit – affordable, delicious, and a great way 
to bring families together. 

• Our Presentation Day was well-attended and celebrated the 
achievements of our Nippers and volunteers. 

looked after and feel encouraged and feel valued. You guys are next level!!! 
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 Volunteers 

• We had over 50 dedicated Age Managers leading the way, and it’s been fantastic to see their skills and 
confidence grow. 

• Our Water Safety Team were standouts – their consistency, preparation, and involvement in briefings and 
debriefings made a real difference this season. 

  
Overall Vibe 
• The energy, positivity, and team spirit across all age groups were incredible. 
• Thanks to the parents, volunteers, and community members who turn up rain or shine, set up and pack down, 

cook the BBQ, support the kids, and always bring a smile. 
 
We’ve learned, grown, and are already excited for a bigger, better 2025/26 season. 
 

Planning has already started for our next season, and we’re super excited about spending another amazing Nippers 

season together again. We hope all our Nipper families love being involved in our Palmy Surf Club, our Nipper 

program, and are proud to be a part of our Palmy Family!!!  

The whole point in families doing nippers together is for the whole family to learn specific skills, spend time in the 

ocean, and be confident in the water. The more people that are confident in the water, the safer our beach 

communities will be.  SO… getting more Palmy parents involved (not just our awesome nippers) next season is our 

major aim!  Palmy Parents as age managers, as water safety, as officials, as Palmy parent competitors, on the BBQ, 

on the Junior Committee, on Patrols, — where will you be involved? 

Thank you again for everyone’s support for this season, it honestly was a pleasure looking after our amazing Palmy 

crew!!!  Every Nipper matters!!  

LOVE OUR PALMY FAMILY!!!  

Yee Haa 

Josh Sealey 

Junior Activities Chair 

 

Nippers Age Category 20/21  21/22  22/23  23/24 24/25  

U6 39 34 39 56 57  

U7 48 53 43 54  74  

U8 34 50 48 50  67  

U9 36 40 47 42  55  

U10 39 29 44 37 42  

U11 26 27 29 32 28  

U12 42 22 19 22 32  

U13 19 27 20 22 23  

U14 28 17 21 22  19  

Total Nippers Membership 311 299 310 337 397  
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Junior Award Winners 

AGE 
GROUP 

OVERALL 
AGE CHAMPIONS 

CLUB VALUES 
AWARD 

BOYS GIRLS 

U8 
1st – Asher Field 
2nd – Ziggy Small 
3rd – Billy Field 
3rd – Hugh Hudson 
  

1st – Emma Brinckley 
2nd – Parker Litwinczuk 
3rd – Harriet MacTaggart 

1.  Lakey Emmerson 
2.  Zara Prescott 
3.  Liliana Ohtake 
4.  Elliott Judd 

U9 
1st  – Harvey Ellis 
2nd – Jack Te Heu Heu Tukino 
3rd – Henry Armes 
  

1st – Imala Andersson 
1st – Poppy Proctor 
2nd – Saniah Toomey 
3rd – Charli Skelley 
3rd – Matilda Liston 

1.  Charli Skelley 
2.  Jack Gostelow 
3.  James Jaszewski 
4.  Samuel Benavides 

U10 
1st – Lewis Hayward-Turner 
2nd – Tyler Lacey 
3rd – Sampson White 

1st – Skye Stebbins 
2nd – Layla Jackson 
3rd – Lucy Fahey 

1. Nika Ambrose 
2. Lexi Tidey 
3. Paige Hvass 
4. Caely Hunia 

U11 
1st – Finnegan Delaney 
2nd – Parker Core 
3rd – York Klein 

1st – Maya Stebbins 
2nd – Aleesha Eccles 
3rd – Rayah Clark 

1.  Arabella Scott 
2.  Lena Gillon 
3.  Teah Butler 
4.  Anabel Robinson 

U12 
1st – Caleb Churchett 
2nd – Koa Te Heu Heu Tukino 
3rd – Angus Mudge 

1st – Zali Tidey 
2nd – Willow Hayward-Turner 
3rd – Sofia Murphy 

1. Rhys Butler 
2. Geoff McEnearney 
3. Kerys Rezek 
4. Meggie De Chhimba 

U13 
1st – Simeon Robinson 
2nd – Mars Klein 
3rd – Slater Hunt 

1st – Willow Ford 
2nd – Myah Duckett 
3rd – Ruby Hodgson 

1.  Simeon Robinson 
2.  Madeleine Kumlin 
3.  Oscar Griffiths 
4.  Anastasia Paramonov 

U14 
 Club Values Awards 

Involvement - Charlize De Chhimba 
Community – Timur Sabitov 
Inclusion - Eloise Allport 
Competition - Payton Channell 
Respect - Ty Baxter 
Community Service - Asaiah Robinson 
Mateship - Pepper Bailey 
Mentorship - Eloise Murphy  

COACHES 

AWARDS 

1.  Kerys Rezek U12 
2.  Eden Griffith U11 
3.  Angus Mudge U12 
4.  Zali Tidey U12 
5.  Lucy Fahey U11 
6.  Eloise Murphy U14 
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Junior Carnival Results 
2025 Point Danger Branch Youth Championships 

1 U12 Female Beach Flags Sofia Murphy 

1 U12 Female Beach Sprint Sofia Murphy 

1 U12 Male Beach Relay Koby Beveridge 

1 U12 Male Beach Relay Caleb Churchett 

1 U12 Male Beach Relay Byron Sams 

1 U12 Male Beach Relay Koa Te Heu Heu Tukino 

1 U12 Male Beach Sprint Koa Te Heu Heu Tukino 

1 U14 Female Beach Flags Payton Channell 

1 U14 Female Beach Sprint Payton Channell 

1 U14 Mixed Beach Relay Payton Channell 

1 U14 Mixed Beach Relay Charlize De Chhimba 

1 U14 Mixed Beach Relay Jacob Sealey 

1 U14 Mixed Beach Relay Asaiah Robinson 

2 U11 Female Beach Relay Lena Gillon 

2 U11 Female Beach Relay Eden Griffiths 

2 U11 Female Beach Relay Arabella Scott 

2 U11 Female Beach Relay Maya Stebbins 

2 U11 Mixed Beach Relay Finnegan Delaney 

2 U11 Mixed Beach Relay Lena Gillon 

2 U11 Mixed Beach Relay Lewis Hayward-Turner 

2 U11 Mixed Beach Relay Maya Stebbins 

2 U12 Female Ironperson Meggie De Chhimba 

2 U12 Female Surf Teams Meggie De Chhimba 

2 U12 Female Surf Teams Willow Hayward-Turner 

2 U12 Female Surf Teams Sofia Murphy 

2 U12 Female Surf Teams Zali Tidey 

2 U12 Male 2 x 500m Beach Run Relay Caleb Churchett 

2 U12 Male 2 x 500m Beach Run Relay Byron Sams 

2 U12 Male Board Race Byron Sams 

2 U12 Male Board Relay Caleb Churchett 

2 U12 Male Board Relay Angus Mudge 

2 U12 Male Board Relay Byron Sams 

2 U12 Male Surf Race Byron Sams 

2 U12 Mixed Beach Relay Meggie De Chhimba 

2 U12 Mixed Beach Relay Sofia Murphy 

2 U12 Mixed Beach Relay Byron Sams 

2 U12 Mixed Beach Relay Koa Te Heu Heu Tukino 

2 U13 Female Beach Relay Meggie De Chhimba 

2 U13 Female Beach Relay Mila Griffiths 

2 U13 Female Beach Relay Ruby Hodgson 

2 U13 Female Beach Relay Sofia Murphy 

2 U13 Female Beach Sprint Mila Griffiths 

2 U14 Female Beach Flags Eloise Murphy 

2 U15 Male Board Race Digby Tidey 

2 U15 Mixed Beach Relay Payton Channell 

2 U15 Mixed Beach Relay Charlize De Chhimba 

2 U15 Mixed Beach Relay Harry Griffiths 

2  U15 Mixed Beach Relay Asaiah Robinson 

3 U11 Female 2 x 500m Beach Run Relay Lena Gillon 
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Junior Carnival Results cont. 

3 U11 Female 2 x 500m Beach Run Relay Lena Gillon 

3 U11 Female 2 x 500m Beach Run Relay Eden Griffiths 

3 U11 Female Beach Flags Maya Stebbins 

3 U11 Female Cameron Relay Rayah Clark 

3 U11 Female Cameron Relay Lena Gillon 

3 U11 Female Cameron Relay Eden Griffiths 

3 U11 Female Cameron Relay Maya Stebbins 

3 U11 Male 2 x 500m Beach Run Relay Finnegan Delaney 

3 U11 Male 2 x 500m Beach Run Relay Lewis Hayward-Turner 

3 U12 Female 2 x 500m Beach Run Relay Meggie De Chhimba 

3 U12 Female 2 x 500m Beach Run Relay Sofia Murphy 

3 U12 Female Beach Relay Meggie De Chhimba 

3 U12 Female Beach Relay Willow Hayward-Turner 

3 U12 Female Beach Relay Sofia Murphy 

3 U12 Female Beach Relay Kerys Rezek 

3 U12 Female Cameron Relay Meggie De Chhimba 

3 U12 Female Cameron Relay Willow Hayward-Turner 

3 U12 Female Cameron Relay Sofia Murphy 

3 U12 Female Cameron Relay Zali Tidey 

3 U12 Male 1Km Beach Run Caleb Churchett 

3 U12 Male Cameron Relay Rhys Butler 

3 U12 Male Cameron Relay Caleb Churchett 

3 U12 Male Cameron Relay Byron Sams 

3 U12 Male Cameron Relay Koa Te Heu Heu Tukino 

3 U12 Male Ironperson Byron Sams 

3 U12 Male Surf Teams Koby Beveridge 

3 U12 Male Surf Teams Caleb Churchett 

3 U12 Male Surf Teams Angus Mudge 

3 U12 Male Surf Teams Byron Sams 

3 U13 Female 2 x 1km Beach Run Relay Mila Griffiths 

3 U13 Female 2 x 1km Beach Run Relay Ruby Hodgson 

3 U13 Female Beach Sprint Ruby Hodgson 

3 U13 Male Beach Flags Mars Klein 

3 U13 Male Beach Sprint Mars Klein 

3 U14 Female Beach Relay Eloise Allport 

3 U14 Female Beach Relay Payton Channell 

3 U14 Female Beach Relay Charlize De Chhimba 

3 U14 Female Beach Relay Eloise Murphy 

3 U14 Female Beach Sprint Eloise Murphy 

3 U14 Male 2Km Beach Run Asaiah Robinson 

3 U14 Male Beach Sprint Asaiah Robinson 

3 U15 Male Beach Relay Harry Griffiths 

3 U15 Male Beach Relay Asaiah Robinson 

3 U15 Male Beach Relay Jacob Sealey 

3 U15 Male Beach Relay Digby Tidey 

2025 Point Danger Branch Youth Championships (cont’d) 
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Competition is stiff at Aussies. Our Palm Beach squad was small but mighty and did their very best, representing Palm 
Beach well and showing wonderful team camaraderie.  

 

Palm Beach Aussies Youth squad was: 

• Eloise Allport 

• Eloise Murphy 

• Charlize De Chhimba 

• Payton Channell 

 

All representatives completed the 2km run. 

Each member also competed in the following races: 

 

Eloise Allport: Surf Race, Iron Woman, Board 

Eloise Murphy: Surf Race, Flags, Sprints, Board 

Charlize De Chhimba: Flags, Sprints, Surf Race 

Payton Channell: Beach flags, Sprints – made ¼ finals 

 

Congratulations on your first Aussies, girls! 

2025 Queensland Youth Championships 

2025 Australian Youth Championships 

Event cancelled due to weather. Bitterly disappointing but the correct decision.  

Our Palmy Squad were presented with their team uniforms prior to the event cancellation. 
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Junior Development Awards Gained 

Surf Play One (U6) 

Ambrose, Ivy 

Armstrong, Rose 

Askew, Ella 

Barnes, Luca 

Barnish, Charles 

Beckerleg, Liam 

Beutel, Henry 

Booth, Ollie 

Chibel, Maya 

Cooney, Cove 

Davis, Georgia 

Dawson, Marley 

Devisser, Elke 

Gemmell, Mackenzie 

Gooch, Jagger 

Gostelow, Lila 

Hodgson, Josie 

Judd, Fletcher 

Kane, Finlay 

Koleczko, Frankie 

Lacey, Ashton 

Lewis, Nash 

Lockhart, Noa 

Logan, Lachlan 

Mcdonald, Eddie 

Mclaren, Gaia 

Mitchell, Zara 

Monro, Ada 

Musgrave, Madison 

Nieuwoudt, Eli 

Ogrady, Eve 

Parris, Grayson 

Prescott, Poppy 

Richards, Aidan 

Robbins, Rosamund 

Roberts, Asher 

Roe, Louie 

Rowe, Maia 

Scales, Jayden 

Shiota, Issay 

Skelley, Jackson 

Small, Olly 

Sonnekus, Lilly 

Stockwell, Aston 

Stubbs, Archie 

Te Riini, Kupa 

Te Riini, Taika 

Thomas, Talan 

Trott, Mila 

Walker, Remi 

Webber, Huski 

Wright, Lindsey 

 

Surf Play Two (U7) 

Allen, Kade 

Auzino, Jonah 

Bax, William 

Black, Hamish 

Blane, Jarrah 

Brinkmann, Oscar 

Butler, Demi 

Core, Lennox 

Crane, Charlie 

Crane, Hunter 

Daley, Cora 

Diamond, Ethan 

Donlan, Archie 

Doogan, Yorke 

Easton, Asher 

Ellis, Maeve 

Emmerson, Zeplin 

Fa'Avale, Selemaea 

Fleming, Delilah 

Forbes, Chase 

Godfrey, Madeline 

Grose, Georgie 

Habib, Cleo 

Hall, Piper 

Hamilton, Jackson 

Hanlon, George 

Hanna, Olive 

Hayward-Turner, Mackenzie 

Jaszewski, Samuel 

Jones, Indi 

Katene, Maya 

Kent, Edith 

Le Roux, Marcel 

Lewis, Eden 

Liston, Frankie 

Litwinczuk, Malachi 

Lopez, Catalina 

Loring, Halle 

Lyne, Amelia 

Mackay, Olive 

Mactaggart, Phoebe 

Maitre, Aubry 

Matterson, Carter 

Mcenearney, Josie 

Mclaren, Indigo 

Meers, Henrik 

Melhem, Mia 

Monro, Harvey 

Newman, Lilah 

Norval, Sonny 

Ogrady, Reef 

Purchase, Madeline 

Quill, Ellie 

Rea, Jovi 

Ritorto, Jack 

Robinson, Shiloh 

Roe, Remy 

Schutz, Oscar 

Smith, Dusty 

Stafford, Lucy 

Staples, Zara 

Stewart, Raiden 

Symonds, Taylor 

Taylor, Everly 

Taylor, Miles 

Threlfo, James 

Vahua, Theios 

Webber, Rocket 

Williamson, Aiden 

Williamson, Cooper 

Wood, Hendrix 

Young, Pippa 

 

Surf Aware One (U8) 
Armstrong, Finn 

Auzino, Naia 

Bateman, Audrey-Lee 

Beamish, Sage 

Bolger, Stella 

Brinckley, Emma 

Carter, Bryce 

Clark, Nikita 

Cwaczko, Darskia 

Dawson, Flinders 

Delaney, Maeve 

Dephoff, Evie 

Devisser, Bonnie 

Emmerson, Lakey 

Field, Asher 

Field, Billy 

Gay, Eden 

Gemmell, Piper 

Griffin, Koa 

Grove, Zephyr 

Hanna, John 
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Junior Development Awards Gained cont. 

Hudson, Hugh 

Hvass, Lachlan 

Judd, Elliott 

Kane, Franklin 

Kumar, Elizabeth 

Lacey, Caleb 

Litwinczuk, Parker 

Logan, Hamish 

Mactaggart, Harriet 

Maleham, Jesse 

Martin, Harry 

Mcdonald, Max 

Mclaren, Misha 

Mclean, Ned 

Moloney, Zachary 

Morton, Elle 

Nagy, Margot 

Norval, Isla 

Ohtake, Liliana 

Prescott, Zara 

Purchase, Darcy 

Richards, Jacob 

Ritchie, Zoe 

Roberts, Chilli 

Russell, Harrison 

Schreiber, Hugo 

Scott, Charlotte 

Small, Ziggy 

Sonnekus, Aiden 

Stubbs, Bodhi 

Thomas, Zayden 

Threlfo, Oliver 

Weatherall, Koa 

Webb, Annabelle 

White, Ella 

Williamson, Nate 

Wilson, Wolf 

Young, Maggie 

 

Surf Aware Two (U9) 

Andersson, Imala 

Armes, Henry 

Barnish, Frederick 

Barnish, Isabela 

Benavides, Samuel 

Beutel, Charlotte 

Booth, Evie 

Clark, Skylar 

Davies, Delilah 

Davis, Billie 

Doogan, Cuba 

Dunn, Dashael 

Easton, Mercedes 

Ellis, Harvey 

Forbes, Henley 

Gillon, Reuben 

Gooch, Jonty 

Gostelow, Jack 

Griffin, Ruby 

Hunia, Lilah 

Hunia, Toby 

Hynes, Henry 

Jaszewski, James 

Katene, Axel 

Kent, Madeleine 

Lankshear, Lara 

Liston, Matilda 

Major, Jasper 

Martiensen, Ella 

Mccafferty, Angus 

Mitchell, Remy 

Mudge, Aria 

Musgrave, Charlotte 

Oliver, Ester 

Paramonov, Solomon 

Prescott, Archie 

Proctor, Poppy 

Robinson, Beau 

Robinson, Solomon 

Rowe, Luca 

Saunders, Ned 

Saunders, Owen 

Skelley, Charli 

Stafford, Lenny 

Sutcliffe, Elle 

Taylor, Bowen 

Te Heu Heu Tukino, Jack 

Toomey, Saniah 

Turner, Luke 

Turner, Will 

Walker, Harlen 

Webb, Spencer 

Whitehouse, Vivienne 

 

Surf Safe One (U10) 

Alegria, Hunter 

Allen, Jace 

Ambrose, Nika 

Andersson, Elke 

Armanwood, Ayla 

Brinkmann, Oliver 

Butler, Anika 

Butler, Tilly 

Dopper, Otis 

Du Plessis, Franco 

Duffy, Charlotte 

Fa'Avale, Felani 

Fahey, Lucy 

Gay, Josephine 

Hart, Mollie 

Hayward-Turner, Lewis 

Herzberg, Luca 

Hunia, Caely 

Hvass, Paige 

Jackson, Layla 

Judd, Willamena 

Klein, Banjo 

Lacey, Tyler 

Le Roux, Christiaan 

Maleham, Lacey 

Marais, Joel 

Mccafferty, Banjo 

Nagy, Charlotte 

Ohtake, Ash 

Quill, Billy 

Roberts, Leilani 

Schreiber, Benji 

Small, Finn 

Smith, Sylvie 

Stebbins, Skye 

Stebbins, Summer 

Taylor, Hazel 

Tidey, Alexis (Lexi) 

Veraa, Luka 

White, Sampson 

Wilson, Ayla 

 

 

Surf Safe Two (U11) 

Allen, Sunny 

Butler, Teah 

Clark, Rayah 

Core, Parker 

Delaney, Finnegan 

Devisser, Chloe 

Duckett, Noah 

Easton, Angelina 

Eccles, Aleesha 

Gillon, Lena 

Griffiths, Eden 
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Junior Development Awards Gained cont. 

Hudson, Rosie 

Hurley, Jovi 

Klein, York 

Mathew, Matrix 

Oliver, Sienna 

Paramonov, Ksenia 

Phillips, Stanley 

Ritorto, Stella 

Robinson, Anabel 

Saciri, Sailor 

Samuel, Isaac 

Scott, Arabella 

Stebbins, Maya 

Stening, Xinger 

 

Surf Smart One (U12) 

Alegria, Lucas 

Beveridge, Koby 

Butler, Rhys 

Churchett, Caleb 

Davies, Jenson 

De Chhimba, Meggie 

Fa'Avale, Auro 

Forbes, Mia 

Garner, Millie 

Hayward-Turner, Willow 

Kumar, Prayan 

Kumlin, Tilde 

McEnearney, Geoffrey 

Middleton, Lara 

Mudge, Angus 

Murphy, Sofia 

Phillips, Judah 

Rezek, Kerys 

Richardson, Sam 

Ritchie, Dylan 

Rowe, Phoenix 

Sabitov, Alexander 

Sams, Byron 

Scott, Willow 

Sealey, Luke 

Skelley, Joshua 

Te Heu Heu Tukino, Koa 

Thomas, Zavier 

Tidey, Zali 

Veraa, Dante 

Veraa, Dario 

 

 

 

Surf Smart Two (U13) 

Allen, Lua 

De Broughe, Ash 

Dredge, Maddox 

Duckett, Myah 

Edgar, Sam 

Forbes, Harper 

Ford, Willow 

Griffiths, Mila 

Griffiths, Oscar 

Hodgson, Ruby 

Hunt, Slater 

Khanna, Lokesh 

Klein, Mars 

Kumlin, Madeleine 

Maitre, Bastien 

Maitre, Lowan 

McMaugh, Matthew 

Ohtake, Cecilia 

Paramonov, Anastasia 

Robinson, Simeon 

Samuel, Jordan 

 

Age Manager  

Churchett, Craig 

Fahey, Adam 

Field, Sharna 

Hanna, Peter 

Hudson, Kate 

Jones-Dean, Dylan 

Judd, Jo 

Judd, Philip 

Kent, Peter 

Kent, Alyssa 

Monaghan, Leesa 

Morton, Myf 

Proctor, Lucy 

Roe, Mitchell 

Roe, Jessica 

Tidey, Benjamin 

Turner, Jason 

White, Gregory 

 

Age Manager Assistant 

Dredge, Zarriah 

 

 

 

 

Officials Award 

- Core 

Wongreyova, Petra 

 

- Technical 

Channell, Abigail 

Turner, Cassandra 

Waller, Jacqueline 
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Grants Report 

We are pleased to report that we secured over $61,000 in grant funding this season through our submission of 

grant applications at local, state, and federal level as well as within the private sector.   

  

Grants assist our Club in funding key projects and equipment purchases that align with our Club's needs whilst 

meeting the criteria of each grant program. While we were unsuccessful in some applications, we will continue to 

source avenues to make improvements to our Club and provide equipment and resources for our members. 

 

Grant success this season and last enabled our Club to:  

• Replace equipment needed by our lifesavers to keep our community safe; including new wetsuits, personal 

flotation devices (PFDs) and rescue boards. 

• Upgrade our club training room flooring. 

• Provide new equipment and uniforms for our volunteers leading our popular Nippers program . 

• Provide new boards for our Nippers training to become our future lifesavers. 

 

We will continue to seek out grant opportunities to support our Club’s growth and development.  

However, if any of our members hear of a grant we could apply for, please share details with our Club office.  

 

With sincere thanks to the following entities for their support and funding this season:  

• Australian Government 

• Queensland Government 

• Queensland Fire and Emergency Services 

• Surf Life Saving Australia 

• City of Gold Coast  

• Bendigo Bank 
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Life Member Inductee: Samuel Morgan 

Samuel Morgan joined Palm Beach Surf Life Saving Club in 2006 and secured his Bronze 

medallion. Sam or ‘Morgs’ as he is well known (also known as “Baywatch”) has gone on to hold over 94 

awards.  

 

As a young member, Sam put his hand up to take on many important roles in the club; Patrol Captain, 

Deputy President for four years and President for two years. Sam was awarded Life Saver of the Year in 

2019 and Branch Rookie Coach 2018. Sam is a qualified training officer and best known for his skill and 

assistant in IRB, training our next generation of crewies and drivers.  

 

Though Sam lives in Brisbane, as a qualified carpenter and electrician, he has donated many hours and 

equipment to club renovations and repairs over the years, and continues to represent the Club at 

functions such as the SLSQ Annual Dinner. Sam was recently actively involved in strategic planning days 

to charter the future of the club. Sam is the embodiment of our values – unity; respect; inclusion, and 

involvement and the club was pleased to honour him with Life Membership at the Annual General 

Meeting in June 2024. 

 

Congratulations Sam. Thank you for your dedication and service to Palm Beach Surf Life Saving Club. 
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Officers Honour Board 1930—1962 
 

 

 

 

40 

Season President Deputy President Captain Vice Captain Junior Chairperson 

1930-31 Tom King   Jack Church    

1931-32 Tom King   Dave Corbett    

1932-33 Tom King   Dave Corbett    

1933-34 Tom King   John Stewart    

1934-35 Bill Keogh   John Stewart    

1935-36 Bill Keogh   John Stewart    

1936-37 Bill Keogh   Rod Knight    

1937-38 Bill Keogh   Rod Knight    

1938-39 Harry Griffith   Andy Frizzell Jack Cartledge  

1939-40 Harry Griffith   Ron Knight Frank Byrne / Tom Walsh  

1940-41 Harry Griffith   Tom Walsh Bob Hull  

1941-42 Andy Frizzell   Tom Walsh Bob Hull  

1942-43 Andy Frizzell   Reg Gilmeister / A. Crank A. Crank / Danny Mullins  

1943-44 Andy Frizzell   A. Crank Danny Mullins / Ian Elford  

1944-45 Andy Frizzell   Ian Elford Danny Mullins  

1945-46 Andy Frizzell   Reg Gilmeister Ian Elford  

1946-47 Andy Frizzell   Tom Murphy Harry Rowden  

1947-48 Andy Frizzell   Roy Pascoe Ken Francis  

1948-49 Andy Frizzell   Ken Francis Ray Pascoe  

1949-50 Andy Frizzell   Ken Francis Keith Forsyth  

1950-51 Andy Frizzell   Harry Aldridge Ken Francis  

1951-52 Andy Frizzell   Harry Aldridge Ken Francis  

1952-53 Andy Frizzell   Ken Francis George Stone  

1953-54 Andy Frizzell   George Stone Vic Frizzell  

1954-55 Andy Frizzell   George Stone Vic Frizzell / Gil Graham  

1955-56 Andy Frizzell   Gil Graham Lloyd Aldridge  

1956-S7 Andy Frizzell   Jack Spencer Gil Graham  

1957-58 Andy Frizzell   Jack Spencer Don Kenway  

1958-59 Andy Frizzell   Don Kenway / Ivan Rojahn Ivan Rojahn / Guri Lluka  

1959-60 Andy Frizzell   Ivan Rojahn Col Muller  

1960·61 Andy Frizzell   Col Muller Fred Aldridge  

1961-62 Andy Frizzell   Barry Jukes Guri Lluka  

1962-63 Andy Frizzell Jack Spencer Col Muller Peter Ward  
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Officers Honour Board 1930—1962 

41 

Season Secretary Treasurer Chief Instructor Boat Captain IRB Officer 

1930-31 Fred Cliff   Jack Church     

1931-32 Fred Cliff   Tom King     

1932-33 Bill McPhee   Bob Stewart     

1933-34 Bill McPhee Dave Summers Bob Stewart     

1934-35 Bill McPhee / Dave Summers C. O'Keefe John McPhee     

1935-36 Bill McPhee / Charlie Rowden John McPhee       

1936-37 Charlie Rowden Dave Eaves Jack McCarthy     

1937-38 Charlie Rowden Dave Eaves John McPhee     

1938-39 Jack Anderson Jack Anderson / Alan Willing Andy Frizzell Cec Twist   

1939-40 Jack Anderson Alan Willing / Harry Mellor Don Christenson Jack Ryrie   

1940-41 Jack Briggs Harry Mellor Tom Walsh     

1941-42 R. Wallace Harry Mellor Don Christenson     

1942-43 Ted Donald Harry Mellor Andy Frizzell Eric Haynes   

1943-44 Ted Donald Harry Mellor Dan Mullins Eric Haynes   

1944-45 Ted Donald Harry Mellor Reg Gilmeister Eric Haynes   

1945-46 Ted Donald Harry Mellor Ian Byrnes Jack McKain   

1946-47 Ted Donald Harry Mellor Ron Morrow Alan Gray   

1947-48 Phil Comadira / Jake Wilde Harry Mellor Norm Collins Alan Gray   

1948-49 Phil Comadira Harry Mellor Alan Robinson Alan Gray   

1949-50 Phil Comadira Harry Mellor Jack Spencer Alan Gray   

1950-51 Phil Comadira Harry Mellor Jack Spencer Alan Gray   

1951-52 Phil Comadira Harry Mellor Jack Spencer Alan Gray   

1952-53 Phil Comadira / Alan Gray Harry Mellor Jack Spencer Alan Gray   

1953-54 Maurie Webb Harry Mellor Jack Spencer Alan Gray   

1954-55 Maurie Webb Harry Mellor Jack Spencer Gil Graham   

1955-56 Maurie Webb Harry Mellor Jack Spencer Ivan Rojahn   

1956-S7 Maurie Webb Harry Mellor Ken Bagnall Ivan Rojahn   

1957-58 Maurie Webb Harry Mellor Ken Bagnall John Dank   

1958-59 Maurie Webb / Peter Ward Harry Mellor Jack Spencer Barry Milligan   

1959-60 Dave Sams / John McLane Ron Coffey Jack Spencer Jack Spencer   

1960·61 Nick Eden Ron Coffey Warren Johnson Ivan Rojahn   

1961-62 Col Muller Ron Coffey Ross Linnett  Ivan Rojahn / Brian Curtis   

1962-63 Nick Eden Ron Coffey Ross Linnett  Barry Jukes   
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Officers Honour Board 1962—1992 
Season President Deputy President Captain Vice Captain Junior Chairperson 

1963-64 Jack Spencer Maurie Webb Col Muller Peter Ward  

1964-65 Maurie Webb Jack Spencer Peter Ward Ian Comadira  

1965-66 Andy Frizzell Maurie Webb Peter Ward Barry Howes  

1966-67 Andy Frizzell Gil Graham Ian Gunn Warren Johnson Andy Frizzell 

1967-68 Andy Frizzell Gil Graham Ian Gunn / Barry Howes Barry Howes / Les Joyce Andy Frizzell 

1968-69 Andy Frizzell Gil Graham Ian Gunn / Barry Hayward Barry Hayward / Andy Frizzell 

1969-70 Gil Graham Maurie Webb Barry Hayward Peter Connell Andy Frizzell 

1970-71 Gil Graham Maurie Webb Arthur Sweeney Bob Stockwell / Andy Frizzell 

1971-72 Gil Graham Maurie Webb Trevor Bone Barry Hawes Andy Frizzell 

1972-73 Gil Graham Bob McPherson Trevor Bone Gary Greenwood Andy Frizzell 

1973-74 Gil Graham Bob McPherson John Batchelor Ian Sarow Andy Frizzell 

1974-75 Gil Graham Bob McPherson John Batchelor Lloyd Kenny Andy Frizzell 

1975-76 Gil Graham Barry Jukes Lloyd Kenny Greg Bachelor Andy Frizzell 

1976-77 Gil Graham Barry Howes Lloyd Kenny G Savage / Philip Mann Andy Frizzell 

1977-78 Gil Graham Barry Howes Lloyd Kenny Trevor Bone Andy Frizzell 

1978-79 Gil Graham Barry Howes Ross Howes   Andy Frizzell 

1979-80 Gil Graham Barry Howes Ross Howes Ken Ryan Andy Frizzell 

1980-81 Vince Sharland Ken Bagnall Ross Howes Tony Bourke / Max Sahl Andy Frizzell 

1981-82 Vince Sharland Bob McPherson Bob Stewart Max Sahl Andy Frizzell 

1982-83 Barry Howes Lloyd Kenny Ian Sarow Robert Walsh / Andy Frizzell 

1983-84 Barry Howes Lloyd Kenny Ian Sarow Russell Schultz Andy Frizzell 

1984-85 Barry Howes Peter Farlow Col Paterson Ken Bagnall Andy Frizzell 

1985-86 Barry Howes Ken Bagnall Col Paterson Rick Gardener Andy Frizzell 

1986-87 Harry Edwards Ken Bagnall Maarten Sherrington Wendy Flynn Andy Frizzell 

1987-88 Harry Edwards Ken Bagnall Scott Pacey Mark Dudley Andy Frizzell 

1988-89 Ken Bagnall Harry Edwards Scott Pacey Mark Dudley Andy Frizzell 

1989-90 Col Paterson Harry Edwards Mark Dudley Chris Ware Malcolm Nutt 

1990-91 Col Paterson Dan Stewart Gordon Shears Eddie Valladares Malcolm Nutt 

1991-92 Jeff Spink Malcolm Nutt Gordon Shears Russell Schultz / Malcolm Nutt 

1992-93 Jeff Spink Malcolm Nutt Dan Stewart Ian Cowper Malcolm Nutt 
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Officers Honour Board 1962—1992 

43 

Season Secretary Treasurer Chief Instructor Boat Captain IRB Officer 

1963-64 Nick Eden Ron Coffey Keith Taske  Barry Jukes   

1964-65 Ross Linnett / J White Ron Coffey Warren Johnson  Barry Howes   

1965-66 Ian Cowper Ron Coffey / Dick Felton Ian Gunn / Barry Hayward  Les Joyce   

1966-67 Peter Wyeth Dick Felton Barry Hayward  Gil Graham   

1967-68 Peter Wyeth Barry Hayward Bill Gallagher  Gil Graham   

1968-69 Bill Gallagher Peter Connell Rodney Hyman  Les Joyce / Peter Connell   

1969-70 Bill Gallagher Peter Connell Warren Johnson Barry Howes   

1970-71 Bill Gallagher Peter Connell / Peter Wildin Warren Johnson Bob Stockwell   

1971-72 Bill Gallagher Peter Wildin John Watley     

1972-73 Barry Jukes Peter Wildin John Watley GII Graham   

1973-74 Barry Jukes Peter Wildin Greg Batchelor     

1974-75 Mike Connelly Peter Wildin Robert Garland Les Joyce   

1975-76 Barry Howes Peter Anderson / Peter Wildin John Batchelor     

1976-77 Barry Howes Peter Wildin Greg Batchelor     

1977-78 Barry Howes Peter Wildin Greg Batchelor Gil Graham   

1978-79 Barry Howes Peter Farlow 
Greg Batchelor / 

Ken Warner 
Lloyd Kenny Col Paterson 

1979-80 Barry Howes Peter Farlow Lloyd Kenny Ken Ryan Col Paterson 

1980-81 Lloyd Kenny Peter Farlow Gil Graham Max Sahl Bob Stewart 

1981-82 Lloyd Kenny Peter Farlow / Bob McPherson Gil Graham Greg Humphreys Gordon Shears 

1982-83 Bob McPherson Bruce Gardiner Paul Humphrey Greg Humphreys Ross Howes 

1983-84 Bob McPherson Ken Ryan Gil Graham Craig Roach Col Paterson 

1984-85 Bob McPherson Ken Ryan Gil Graham Russell Gilmour Eddie Humphreys 

1985-86 Bob McPherson Lloyd Kenny Harry Edwards Russell Gilmour Gordon Shears 

1986-87 Bob McPherson Lloyd Kenny Col Paterson / John McKay Russell Gilmour Col Paterson 

1987-88 Bob McPherson Lloyd Kenny Wendy Flynn Russell Gilmour Col Paterson 

1988-89 Ron Allen-Waters Jeff Spink Matthew Butel Russell Gilmour David Hansen 

1989-90 Ron Allen-Waters Jeff Spink Matthew Butel Russell Gilmour Clayton Rutherford 

1990-91 Maurie Webb Jeff Spink Dan Stewart Russell Gilmour Andrew Rodgers 

1991-92 Col Paterson Harry Edwards Dan Stewart Russell Gilmour Andrew Rodgers 

1992-93 Col Paterson Harry Edwards Graeme Kling Russell Gilmour Sean Lewis 
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Officers Honour Board 1993-2021 
Season President Deputy President Captain Vice Captain Junior Chairperson 

1993-94 Malcolm Nutt Dan Stewart Mick Gatehouse Ian Cowper Peter Nash 

1994-95 Malcolm Nutt Dan Stewart Scott Prenzler Ian Cowper Peter Nash 

1995-96 Malcolm Nutt Dan Stewart Scott Prenzler Ian Cowper Robyn Philo 

1996-97 Dan Stewart Gordon Shears Scott Prenzler Steele MacKenzie Robert Gray 

1997-98 Gordon Shears Russell Gilmour Troy Kling 
Steele MacKenzie / 

Michael Wellman 
Kim Hancock 

1998-99 Gordon Shears Russell Schultz Ray Todd Anthony Preston Robert Gray 

1999-2000 Gordon Shears Russell Schultz Ray Todd (vacant) Michael Karzon Noel Gill 

2000-2001 Dan Stewart Garry Thomas Col Troyahn Lyndell Gimpel Noel Gill 

2001-2002 Garry Thomas Gavin Jordan Wayne Clarke Andre Ireland Noel Gill 

2002-2003 Garry Thomas Gavin Jordan Wayne Clarke Wade Eastburn Noel Gill 

2003-2004 Craig Brodie Gavin Jordan Jamie Quinn Michelle Dale Noel Gill 

2004-2005 Craig Brodie Garry Thomas 
Katie Sandercock / 

Nigel Ward 
Patrice Robertson Noel Gill 

2005-2006 Bob Stockwell Graham Stockwell Nigel Ward Lee Wilkinson Anne Hudson 

2006-2007 Bob Stockwell Graham Stockwell Nigel Ward   Brett Ross 

2007-2008 Bob Stockwell Brett Ross Darrel Henry Matthew Rayfield Brett Ross 

2008-2009 Darrel Henry Brett Ross Scott Rawlings Ben Gill Shane Sterry 

2009-2010 Troy Kling Dan Stewart Scott Rawlings Harry Auckett Tony & Marie Kennedy 

2010-2011 Scott Rawlings Troy Kling Sam Morgan Shannon O'Donnell Tony & Marie Kennedy 

2011-2012 Scott Rawlings Troy Kling Dean Damon Codey Trethewey Mark Madden 

2012-2013 Mark Madden Tony Rapallo Sue Damon Jaime Taylor Mark Madden 

2013-2014 Mark Madden / Troy Kling Troy Kling / Sam Morgan Codey Trethewey Jaime Taylor Gary Fraser 

2014-2015 Troy Kling Sam  Morgan 
Codey Trethewey / 

Mary Farrell 
Sam  Pike Gary Fraser 

2015-2016 Sam Morgan Troy Kling / Erica Read Mary Farrell Sam Pike Gary Fraser 

2016-2017 Sam Morgan Scott Rawlings Mary Farrell Ben Gill Gary Fraser 

2017-2018 Mary Farrell Sam Morgan Ben Gill Rebecca Petersen Gary Fraser 

2018-2019 Mary Farrell Sam Morgan Ben Gill Rebecca Petersen Zelda Jennings 

2019-2020 Mary Farrell Ben Gill Warwick Hollier Shelly Roberts Zelda Jennings 

2020-2021 Mary Farrell Greg Cox Timothy Matchett Nicolas Perugino Zelda Jennings 

2021-2022 Mary Farrell Greg Cox 
Timothy Matchett /  

Greg Clark 

Mitchell Gilmour & 

Nicolas Perugino 
Joshua Sealey 
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Officers Honour Board 1993—2022 

45 

Season Secretary Treasurer Chief Instructor Boat Captain IRB Officer 

1993-94 Col Paterson Harry Edwards Graeme Kling Steve Mangin Neil Pattinson 

1994-95 Harry Edwards Harry Edwards / Robyn Slade 
Ann Parsons /  

Graeme Kling 
Russell Gilmour Troy Kling 

1995-96 Harry Edwards / Denis Dwan Elaine Eussen Dan Stewart / Rod Smith Arnold Eussen Daniel Cowper 

1996-97 Denis Dwan Michael Casey Dan Stewart Arnold Eussen Troy Kling 

1997-98 Elaine Eussen Michael Casey / Robyn Slade Dan Stewart Craig Paddon Troy Kling 

1998-99 Julie Dignum Robyn Slade Dan Stewart Arnie Eussen 
Troy Kling  / 

Mitch Gray / Ray Todd 

1999-2000 Ross Linnett Robyn Slade Dan Stewart Arnie Eussen Rob Gray 

2000-2001 Ross Linnett / Rob Hunt Robyn Slade / Gordon Shears Peter Daniel Arnie Eussen Chris Hudson 

2001-2002 Ross Linnett Ian Cowper Wade Eastburn Russell Gilmour Chris Hudson 

2002-2003 Ross Linnett Ian Cowper Dan Stewart Neil Smith Chris Hudson 

2003-2004 Ross Linnett / Sue Dorries Ross Linnett / Sue Dorries Simon Kealley   Chris Hudson 

2004-2005 Sue Dorries Sue Dorries Simon Kealley Christian Brown / Brett Ross David Carmody 

2005-2006 Sue Dorries / Robert Donaghue Don Meers Simon Kealley Brett Ross Dan O'Brien / 

2006-2007 Robert Donaghue Warwick Fletcher / Michelle Dale Brett Ross Dan O'Brien 

2007-2008 Telford Erskine Graham Stockwell Maxine Breust   Geoff Humrich 

2008-2009 Telford Erskine Noel Gill Dan Stewart Brett Ross Mitch Gray / 

2009-2010 Blair Fidler Sue Damon Amanda & Martin Ainsley Troy Kling Mitch Gray 

2010-2011 Blair Fidler Mark Freemantle /  Sue Damon Troy Kling Tim Rainsford 

2011-2012 Amanda Ainsley / Sue Rawlings John Hooker Sue Damon Troy Kling Troy Kling 

2012-2013 Emily Rawlings Scott O’Neill Richard Andrews Arnie Eussen Troy Kling 

2013-2014 Gordon Shears Scott O’Neill Dan Stewart Arnie Eussen Codey Trethewey / 

2014-2015 Darren Gilmour Scott Rawlings Richard Andrews Arnie Eussen Marco Masia 

2015-2016 Darren Gilmour Scott Rawlings Richard Andrews Arnie Eussen Marco Masia 

2016-2017 Dan Stewart Gary Fraser Richard Andrews Arnie Eussen Craig Smart 

2017-2018 Anna Carroll David Collins Richard Andrews Arnie Eussen Craig Smart 

2018-2019 Anna Carroll David Collins Richard Andrews Stephen Coady David Reid 

2019-2020 Anna Carroll David Collins Richard Andrews - Tom Hutchinson 

2020-2021 Anna Carroll David Collins Donna Riley - David Holzheimer 

2021-2022 Anna Carroll David Collins Donna Riley - David Holzheimer / 
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2022-23 Mary Farrell (President) 
Scott Lyall (Finance) 
Anna Carroll (Administration) 
Greg Cox 
Richard Forbes 

Greg Clark (Club Captain) 
Donna Riley (Chief Training Officer) 
Clayton & Yasmina Kimeklis (Youth Development) 
Josh Sealey (Junior Activities) 
Louise Ruff (Surf Sports Officer) 

2023-24 Mary Farrell (President—stepped down in Feb 2024) 
Scott Lyall (Finance) 
Anna Carroll (Administration) 
Greg Cox 
Andrew Gault (became President in Feb 2024) 

Greg Clark (Club Captain) 
Matthew Barber (Chief Training Officer) 
Yasmina Kimeklis (Youth Development) 
Josh Sealey (Junior Activities) 
Leesa Monaghan (Junior Activities) 
Louise Ruff (Surf Sports) 

2024-25 Anna Carroll (Director of Administration until Feb 25, then elected 
President) 
Andrew Gault (President, resigned Dec 24)  
Scott Lyall (Director of Finance—resigned April 2025) 
Greg Cox (Director, stepped in Director of Administration Feb 25) 
Danielle Stebbins (Director) 
 

Greg Clark (Club Captain resigned Jan 25) 
Ben Tidey (Club  Captain from Jan 25) 
Josh Sealey (Junior Activities Chair) 
Christie Fox (Youth Development) 
CTO & Surf Sports Office - vacant 
 
 

Officers Honour Board 2022-2025 
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Annual Award Winners 

Laura Griffiths 
 

Palm Beach SLSC Supporters Club Trophy 
Volunteer of the Year 

Asaiah Robinson 
 

Palm Beach SLSC 
Youth Volunteer of the Year 

Tessa Viljoen 
 

Award for 
Outstanding New Member 

Eloise Murphy 
 

Mary & Andy Frizzell Memorial 
U14 Junior Lifesaver of the Year 

Harry Griffiths & Digby Tidey 
 

The Spink Family Trophy 
U18 Junior Lifesaver of the Year 

Our Club Annual Dinner and Awards Night was held on Saturday 31st May 2025.  The event was a fun-filled 

evening and our Palmy stars were celebrated and recognised for their commitment and dedication this season. All 

volunteers were thanked for their extensive time and contributions to making our Club the best it can be. 

Congratulations to all our amazing volunteers and award winners. On his debut, Patrol Captain Ben Gill stepped up 

to take on MC duties following in the footsteps of his father, Life Member Noel Gill, ensuring that everyone had a 

great time.  

Timur Sabitov 
 

Encouragement Award for  
Most Improved Cadet/Junior 
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Annual Award Winners cont. 

Ben Tidey 
Maurie Webb Shield 
Lifesaver of the Year 

Louise Ruff and Jack Carroll 
President’s Award 

Most Distinguished Club Member 

Most Patrol Hours 
1. Tessa Viljoen - 150.65 hrs 
2. Codey Trethewey - 80 hrs 

3. Greg Cox  - 77.62 hrs 

Due to unfavourable weather conditions causing many event cancellations this season, a number of awards were not  
presented. We congratulate all our athletes on their dedication and commitment to training, for their selection to represent 
Team Palmy and for the team camaraderie and club values proudly shown when representing our club.  

• Rapallo Family Trophy—Distinguished Achievement in Beach Sports 

• Alice & Merb Lancaster Memorial Trophy—Distinguished Achievement in Surf Sports 

• Masters Athlete of the Year 

Dual “Blue Blazer” winners  Jack Carroll and Louise Ruff (centre) 

following presentation of their blazers from former winners Greg 

Cox and Mary Farrell.  

Greg, Codey, and Tessa (left to right) 
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Vales  
 

Our Club has sadly farewelled a number of our long serving Life Members this season. With thanks to Life 

Members Barry Hayward, Bob Stockwell and Daniel Stewart OAM, as well as Point Danger Branch for their 

assistance in composing the following tributes.  

 

Barry Howes 

10 December 1942 to 29 December 2024 

 

[Fellow Life Member and friend Bob Stockwell shared 

some words about Barry taken from the eulogy he wrote 

for Barry’s funeral ] 

My name is Bob Stockwell and I am a Life Member of the 

Palm Beach Surf Club. I extend my condolences to Cheryl, 

Brooke, Greer, Dahna, Ross, and their families and I 

consider it an honour to share my memories of Barry 

Howes.  

 

Barry and his brother Ross began their sporting journey 

at Sandgate AFL Club, following in the footsteps of their 

father, Ted, a respected trainer and medical expert. Barry was a talented footballer, playing in five reserve grade 

grand finals and winning three premierships. Known for his tough, skilful play, he was awarded Best Player in 1966 

and is remembered for his pivotal role in the 1970 first grade final. 

 

Barry also coached junior 

football, inspiring many 

young players to join him in 

his other passion - surf 

lifesaving. This led to a 

tradition of Sandgate 

players becoming Palm 

Beach lifesavers, many 

achieving Branch and state 

honours. 

 

Barry trained as a boxer and 

won his first professional 

fight in Toowoomba. 

However, his heart was 

always with the surf club. 

Joining Palm Beach in the 

early 1960s, over 30 years he served 

as Vice Captain, Captain, Secretary, 

Deputy President and President.  

Barry Howes as sweep in the 1969 boat crew 

A reunion in 2021 of the junior Palm Beach boat crew winning the State Title in 1969 (in centre photo 
frame and in person) as displayed in the Supporters Club .  

Left to Right: Bob Stockwell, John Whatley, Barry Howes and Keith Twist. Ian Henderson was missing 
from the reunion. 
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He played a key role in the club’s refurbishment in the late 1970s and was made a Life Member in 1978.  

 

Barry’s true love was surf boat racing and training. Over 30 years, he won multiple medals, including state golds in 

Reserve, Senior, Junior, and Masters categories - a remarkable achievement unlikely to be repeated. I was proud 

to row with Barry in the 1968-69 state champion crew. Barry created lasting memories, both on and off the water, 

and was always a source of fun and leadership. 

 

Barry’s wife Cheryl shared that the surf club was the love of Barry’s life. His commitment and leadership made him 

a Palm Beach legend. Surf clubs and football clubs have for a long time created a sense of belonging through mate 

ship, competition, and discipline that prepares young men and women for their future roles in life. These 

associations are Australian icons and they need great leaders. Barry Howes was a great leader and a great friend. 

He will be sadly missed by all who knew him. 

 

Farewell, old friend. 

 

 

 

Barry Howes, far left and some of the Captains who have given years of service to the Palm Beach Surf Club during its  first 

fifty years. Left to Right.  

Barry Howes, Gil Graham, Ross Howes, Trevor Bone, Basil Jukes, Lloyd Kenny, Ivan Rojhan, Andy Frizzell and John Batchelor.  

Page 50 



 

Palm Beach (Qld) Surf Life Saving Club Inc 95th Annual Report 2024-2025 Page 51 

 

Vales 

 

Graeme Kling 

16 June 1947 - 8 June 2025 

 

[Words written by Point Danger Branch and used with permission] 

It is with great sadness that SLSQ Point Danger Branch wishes to advise that Palm Beach Surf Club and SLSQ Point 

Danger Branch Life Member, Graeme Kling, passed away on Sunday 08 June 2025. 

 

Graeme joined Palm Beach SLSC in 1989, gaining his Bronze Medallion in the same year. He contributed to the Club 

in an administrative, lifesaving and surf sports capacity – patrolling and officiating for the Club and holding roles 

including Deputy Chairman on the Junior Activities Committee, Deputy Chief Instructor and Chief Instructor. 

Graeme was awarded a Life Membership of Palm Beach Surf Club in 2009. 

  

At a Branch level Graeme replicated his dedication shown at club level. Graeme was a long term member of the 

both the Board of Life Saving and Surf Sports – contributing many hours as a Level 1 /  Level 2 Official, Trainer, 

Assessor and District Supervisor. 

  

Graeme was named the PDB Examiner of the Year in 1994/95 and Official of the Year in 1996/97 before being 

awarded an SLSQ Outstanding Achievement in Lifesaving Award in 1996. 

  

Graeme was awarded Life Membership of SLSQ Point Danger Branch in July 2003.  

  

Graeme's legacy will be remembered and appreciated. He will be missed as a Life Saver and Friend. 

 

Our thoughts are with Graeme’s wife Pam, children Troy and Melissa and their families who were long time Palm 

Beach residents. Graeme and Pam’s son Troy, who survives his Dad, is also a Life Member of Palm Beach Surf Life 

Saving Club - one of few Father/Son Life Memberships in the club’s history.  
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We were pleased to welcome some new and returning sponsors to join our Palmy Family this season.  

Joining our club as a new Gold sponsor were Coastal and Ingwerson & Lansdowne returned to the club.  

GG Enviro once again continued to educate and entertain our families visiting our Supporters Club with fun and 

educational activity packs. Next Payments returned as a silver sponsor providing an ATM service to our members 

in our Supporters Club. 

AirBnb joined the club for a promotion and funded a refresh of our dorm. Bendigo Bank once again contributed to 

funding our club equipment and provided funding for personal flotation devices and wetsuits for our club 

members in the IRBs. Our club once again thanks Dan Stewart OAM for his annual bursary which was put towards 

nippers education and was extremely appreciated.  McLaughlin’s provided valued legal support and Social 

Espresso provided our club with Nipper boards to help our youth at Nippers and during training. Thank you to 

these businesses and individuals for showing faith and support in our Club.  

Last but by no means least, a huge thank you to our Palm Beach Surf Club Supporters Club which continues to 

operate to great success and provide the largest support to our Club. Having a profitable and successful 

Supporters Club means our Surf Life Saving Club volunteers and staff can focus on what is most important—

ensuring we continue to keep our community safe on our beach.  

Finally, we also wish to thank all levels of government for continuing to support surf lifesaving as well as Point 

Danger Branch, SLSQ and SLSA.  
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Supporters Club President’s Report 
 

This year marked my first as President, and I’m proud to share that 

the Supporters Club has enjoyed another outstanding year 

‘upstairs’, with continued growth in both revenue, memberships 

and patronage. The summer period was particularly busy, reflecting 

the evolving demographic of Palm Beach. Under Ali’s leadership, 

the club has adapted brilliantly—mixing things up to meet the 

changing needs of our community. 

To stay competitive, we’ve made some key capital investments, 

including upgrading to air conditioning, new furniture, and updated 

gaming machines, all of which have helped keep patrons coming 

through the doors. 

Ali and her team continue to break revenue records, grow our 

membership base, and foster a welcoming environment—evident in the smiles of our staff as they greet members 

and the community. Her personal commitment to sustainability and community engagement keeps us aligned with 

local expectations. Notable initiatives include replacing beach-facing lights to support turtle nesting and maintaining a 

robust staff wellness program. 

Congratulations to Ali and the entire team on another fantastic year. Long may the success continue. 

We’ve also welcomed new committee members this year: Andrew Gault, Scott Lyall, and Ben Gill. Despite a 

challenging economic climate, the team has worked hard on the “1%” to ensure continued growth and financial 

support for beach safety. 

A heartfelt thank you to our Board members—Raps, Scotty R, Scott (Treasurer), Russ, and Ben—whose dedication has 

been instrumental to the Club’s success. While Andrew and Scott were unable to complete the season due to 

personal reasons, we sincerely thank them for their contributions during their time on the Board. 

Special thanks to Scott Rawlings, who has served as Deputy President for the past five years. Scott has chosen not to 

stand for another term and will be taking a well-earned break. Thank you, Scott, for your diligence and passion—

you’ve made a lasting impact. 

As a Board, we’re acutely aware of the growth in our area and are working closely with the Surf Club Board to ensure 

our club continues to meet the needs of the future. 

To all our members and patrons, thank you for your continued support. We look forward to another amazing year in 

2025–26. 

 

Leanne Major 

Supporters Club President 
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General Manager’s Report 
 

I can’t believe another year has already passed! They say time flies when you’re having 
fun, which probably means I’m having way too much… 
 
As I sit here reflecting on the past 12 months, I feel extremely humbled by the support 
from my amazing team. Our senior management team, Tayler Green, Dom Olofai and 
Naomi Currie, followed by our fabulous managers Monique Kebby, Erika King, Deb Chape, 
Scott Helbron, Kylie Whitbread, Sally Thompson and Rebecca Coop. They say it takes a 
village to raise a child, well it certainly takes a great team to keep this Club pumping and 
its’ been another incredible year.  
 
We’ve seen some extraordinary numbers coming through the Club, especially over the 24/25 Christmas holidays and 
the staff just smile and kept on keeping on. Some of the greatest moments I have are receiving the emails that I 
receive most weeks from our lovely guests who take the time to tell me how fantastic our staff are and that they 
always go ‘above and beyond’ their call of duty. This just makes me smile, it’s what hospitality is all about. Creating 
those experiences that people remember and cherish but most of all – taking time out of their busy lives to let me 
know.  
 
This year has blessed us with more locals finding their way to us on a weekly basis. Regardless of the struggles with 
our car park - a daily challenge - our members & new guests always find their way to the golden sands of Palm Beach.  
 
Our Executive Chef Dom and his team continue to grow and create magical dishes that keep the punters happy and 
coming back for more. His passion for food is something you’ve got to see for yourself. Whist our menu and weekly 
specials can be ‘special’ in themselves, we also have our Wine Dinners. Several times this year, we have hosted some 
incredible nights where our guests have been blown away by the culinary delights that have hit their plates. Dom’s 
creativity comes to life and his passion appears on a plate in front of you, the excitement of these nights holds that of 
a child on Christmas morning. Every event so far has been a sell-out and we will continue to host these fabulous 
evenings. 
 
We saw a little facelift with our outdoor furniture, with the introduction of white picnic tables on the deck alongside 
the lovely white and bright tables and comfy dining chairs. We were blessed with the support from one of our 
wineries, the Hidden Sea who were generous enough to provide us with the beautiful outdoor yellow umbrellas. This 
relationship sits close to our hearts as they share an incredible passion with us in sustainability and our quest to save 
the ocean from plastics! We have held their wines on our list for years now – I recommend you google them; it’s a 
good read.  
 
With the deck receiving a beautiful facelift, it allowed us to extend our hospitality to introduce “Sunset Sessions” each 
Friday afternoon. We are now home to the one and only ‘DJ on the deck as the sun sets’ featuring melodic chill out 
beach tunes like you’d hear in Ibiza. The growth of our Fridays grew immediately and to our excitement, we’ve now 
introduced an additional monthly session on Sunday afternoons, replacing our regular live entertainment on those 
Sundays, again increasing patronage and enjoyment on the deck.  
 
Unfortunately, it’s not all roses. Cyclone Alfred tried his best to scare us and whilst we navigated a handful of 
electrical issues that had us close our doors for more days than we would like to, the outcome was not too horrific. 
The old girl (yes, our beautiful Club) stands the test of time. She did see a few leaks here and there, she’s being 
repaired and patched up and ready for the next challenge that blows her way. Cyclone Alfred may have huffed and 
puffed but did not blow us down. However, Alfred did leave a financial dint due to a series of power surges from the 
water leaks.  
 
As we sit already in the midst of 2025, we plan and gather our thoughts on what could be for the future.  
Cheers to everyone who has made our year another fun-filled incredible one and cheers to the next 12 months that 
lay ahead of us.  
 
Ali Hilliard 
General Manager, Palm Beach Surf Club Supporter’s Club 
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Supporters Club Board Honour Roll 

Year President Deputy 
President 

Treasurer Secretary Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee Notes 

2024-
25 

Leanne 
Major 

Scott  
Rawlings 

Scott O'Neill 
Tony 
Rapallo 

Geoff Bagnall Ben Gill 
Russell 
Francis 

 Scott Lyall Andrew Gault 
Andrew Gault resigned 
25/3/25; Scott Lyall 
resigned 30/4/25 

2023-
24 

Dale 
Scotcher 

Scott  
Rawlings 

Scott O'Neill  
(21 Nov 
2023) 

Tony 
Rapallo 

Geoff Bagnall 
Leanne 
Major 

Russell 
Francis 

      

2023-
24 

Dale 
Scotcher 

Scott  
Rawlings 

Donna Hollier 
(resigned 30 
Aug 2023)  

Tony 
Rapallo 

Geoff Bagnall 
Leanne 
Major 

Russell 
Francis 

      

2022-
23 

Dale 
Scotcher 

Scott  
Rawlings 

Donna Hollier 
Tony 
Rapallo 

Geoff Bagnall 
Leanne 
Major 

Russell 
Francis 

      

2021-
22 

Gary  
Fraser 

Scott  
Rawlings 

Donna Hollier 
Tony 
Rapallo 

Geoff Bagnall 
Dale 
Scotcher 

Russell 
Francis 

Geoff 
Bagnall 

    

2020-
21 

Gary  
Fraser 

Geoff 
Bagnall 

Donna Hollier 
Tony 
Rapallo 

Mary Farrell 
Dale 
Scotcher 

Anna  
Carroll 

      

2019-
20 

Gary  
Fraser 

Geoff 
Bagnall 

Donna Hollier 
Tony 
Rapallo 

Mary Farrell 
Dale 
Scotcher 

Anna  
Carroll 

      

2018-
19 

Gary  
Fraser 

David  
Lincoln 

Donna Hollier 
Tony 
Rapallo 

Mary Farrell 
Geoff 
Bagnall 

Caroline 
Tas 

Tony Brown     

2017-
18 

Darrel  
Henry 

Troy Kling David Lincoln 
Tony 
Rapallo 

Mary Farrell 
Geoff 
Bagnall 

Caroline 
Tas 

Tony Brown Sam Morgan   

2016-
17 

Darrel  
Henry 

Troy Kling David Lincoln 
Tony 
Rapallo 

Mary Farrell 
Geoff 
Bagnall 

Sam  
Morgan 

      

2015-
16 

Darrel  
Henry 

Troy Kling David Lincoln 
Tony 
Rapallo 

Mary Farrell 
Geoff 
Bagnall 

Sam  
Morgan 

Scott  
Rawlings 

Cameron  
Delahunty 

  

2014-
15 

Darrel  
Henry 

Troy Kling David Lincoln 
Tony 
Rapallo 

Cameron  
Delahunty 

Geoff 
Bagnall 

Scott  
Rawlings 

      

2013-
14 

Darrel  
Henry 

Troy Kling David Lincoln 
Tony 
Rapallo 

Cameron  
Delahunty 

Geoff 
Bagnall 

Scott  
Rawlings 

      

2012-
13 

Darrel  
Henry 

Troy Kling David Lincoln 
Tony 
Rapallo 

Cameron  
Delahunty 

Geoff 
Bagnall 

Todd Blake       

2011-
12 

Darrel  
Henry 

Scott  
Rawlings 

John Hooker 
Tony 
Rapallo 

Cameron  
Delahunty 

Troy Kling Todd Blake 
David  
Lincoln 

    

2010-
11 

Darrel  
Henry 

Scott  
Rawlings 

Mark Free-
mantle 

Tony 
Rapallo 

Matt Rayfield Troy Kling Todd Blake 
David  
Lincoln 

    

2009-
10 

Barry  
Hayward 

Bob  
Stockwell 

Ross Calvert 
Ross 
Linnett 

Keith Twist 
Dick  
Felton 

Tony  
Rapallo 

Scott  
Rawlings 

Troy Kling 
Dick. Barry, Bob and 
Ross all resigned 
mid season 

2008-
09 

Barry  
Hayward 

Bob  
Stockwell 

Ross Calvert 
Ross 
Linnett 

Keith Twist 
Dick  
Felton 

        

2007-
08 

Barry  
Hayward 

Bob  
Stockwell 

Ross Calvert 
Ross 
Linnett 

Keith Twist 
Dick  
Felton 

Darrel  
Henry 

      

2006-
07 

Barry  
Hayward 

Bob  
Stockwell 

Ross Calvert 
Ross 
Linnett 

Keith Twist 
Dick  
Felton 

Don Meers       

2005-
06 

Barry  
Hayward 

Bob  
Stockwell 

Ross Calvert 
Ross 
Linnett 

Keith Twist 
Dick  
Felton 

        

2004-
05 

Barry  
Hayward 

Bob  
Stockwell 

Ross Calvert 
Ross 
Linnett 

Keith Twist 
Basil 
Jukes 

      Incomplete report 

2003-
04 

Barry  
Hayward 

Bob  
Stockwell 

Ross Calvert 
Ross 
Linnett 

Keith Twist 
Basil 
Jukes 

Craig  
Brodie 

      

2002-
03 

Barry  
Hayward 

Bob  
Stockwell 

Ross Calvert 
Ross 
Linnett 

Keith Twist 
Basil 
Jukes 

Gary Thom-
as 
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Year President Deputy 
President 

Treasurer Secretary Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee Notes 

2001-
02 

Barry  
Hayward 

Bob  
Stockwell 

Ross Calvert 
Ian  
Cowper 

Ross Linnett 
Basil 
Jukes 

Trevor 
Bone 

      

2000-
01 

Barry  
Hayward 

Jeff Spink Robyn Slade 
Maurie 
Webb 

Malcolm Nutt 
Gordon 
Shears 

Dan  
Stewart 

R Felton R Aldous   

1999-
20 

Barry 
Howes 

Jeff Spink Robyn Slade 
Maurie 
Webb 

Malcolm Nutt 
Gordon 
Shears 

Dan  
Stewart 

      

1998-
99 

Barry   
Howes 

Jeff Spink Robyn Slade 
Maurie 
Webb 

Malcolm Nutt 
Gordon 
Shears 

Dan  
Stewart 

      

1997-
98 

Barry 
Howes 

Jeff Spink Robyn Slade 
Maurie 
Webb 

Malcolm Nutt 
Gordon 
Shears 

Dan  
Stewart 

      

1996-
97 

Malcolm 
Nutt 

Jeff Spink Robyn Slade 
Maurie 
Webb 

Gordon Shears 
Dan  
Stewart 

        

1995-
96 

Malcolm 
Nutt 

Ian  
Bamford 

Robyn Slade 
Dan  
Stewart 

Jeff Spink 
Harry 
Edwards 

Gordon 
Shears 

      

1994-
95 

Malcolm 
Nutt 

Ian  
Bamford 

Robyn Slade 
Dan  
Stewart 

Jeff Spink 
Harry 
Edwards 

Gordon 
Shears 

      

1993-
94 

Malcolm 
Nutt 

Ian  
Bamford 

Harry  
Edwards 

Colin 
Paterson 

Jeff Spink 
Dan  
Stewart 

Gordon 
Shears 

    
Opened for opera-
tions on 17 August 
1993 

Supporters Club Board Honour Roll (cont’d) 
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Life Saving Club Inc 

ABN 81 799 531 933

Committee Report 
30 April 2025

The committee submit the financial report of the Association for the financial year ended 30 April 2025.

1. General information

Committee members 

The names of committee members throughout the year and at the date of this report are:
President Andrew Gault (resigned 2025)

President Anna Carroll (appointed 2025)

Secretary Greg Cox (appointed 2025)

Secretary Anna Carroll (resigned 2025)

Treasurer Scott Lyall (resigned 2025)

Committee Member Danielle Stebbins (appointed 2025)

Committee Member Mary Farrell (resigned 2025)

Principal activities 

The principal activities of the Association during the financial year were:

To promote, advance and control the work of Surf Life Saving, the resuscitation of the apparently drowned, the
treatment and resuscitation of any person stung by any marine stinger, and the application of first aid on surfing
beaches and elsewhere, and to fulfil any charter of the association including its environment and community education
commitments. 

Significant changes 

No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the year.

2. Operating results and review of operations for the year

Operating result 

The loss of the Association for the financial year after providing for income tax amounted to $ (189,013) (2024
profit:$234,897).

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Members of the Committee:

Committee member: ............................................... Committee member: ...............................................

Dated this ........18th...................... day of ....June.......................... 2025

1



AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 60-40 
OF THE AUSTRALIAN CHARITIES AND NOT-FOR-PROFITS COMMISSION ACT 2012 TO THE 

MEMBERS OF PALM BEACH QLD SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB INC 

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 April 
2025 there have been no contraventions of: 

(i) the auditor independence requirements as set out in section  60-40 of the
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012  in relation to the
audit; and

(ii) any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

DICKFOS DUNN ADAM 
Audit & Assurance 

……………………………………………..  ……………………………………………… 
 T L Adam 

…………………………………………….. 
Dated 
Southport 

12 June 2025



Palm Beach QLD Surf Life Saving Club Inc

ABN 81 799 531 933

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025 

Note

2025

$

2024

$

Revenue 4 771,159 1,124,178

Finance income 8,017 13,029

Total Revenue 779,176 1,137,207

Cost of sales (45,000) (21,673)

Depreciation expense (313,735) (313,830)
Employee benefits expense (262,216) (161,052)

Finance expenses (4) (15,015)

Insurance expense (20,364) (18,763)

Repairs and maintenance (24,399) (15,492)

Rates and water charges (59,173) (93,741)

Workers compensation  (32,262) (29,929)

Other expenses 5 (211,035) (232,814)

Profit/(loss) before income tax (189,013) 234,897
Income tax expense 2(a) - -

Profit/(loss) from continuing operations (189,013) 234,897

Total profit/(loss) for the year (189,013) 234,897

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Life Saving Club Inc

ABN 81 799 531 933

Statement of Financial Position
As At 30 April 2025

Note

2025

$

2024

$

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 6 260,275 381,063

Trade and other receivables 7 87,721 23,016

Inventories 8 55,609 52,935

Other assets 9 16,354 15,929

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 419,959 472,943

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 10 6,739,210 6,917,089

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 6,739,210 6,917,089

TOTAL ASSETS 7,159,169 7,390,032

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 11 42,046 32,548

Borrowings 12 - 1,972

Employee benefits 13 3,564 19,296

Other liabilities 14 7,500 41,143

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 53,110 94,959

NET ASSETS 7,106,059 7,295,073

EQUITY
Reserves 4,422,533 4,422,533

Retained earnings 2,683,526 2,872,540

TOTAL EQUITY 7,106,059 7,295,073

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Life Saving Club Inc

ABN 81 799 531 933

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

2025

Retained
Earnings

$

Asset
Revaluation

Reserve

$

Total

$

Balance at 1 May 2024 2,872,539 4,422,533 7,295,072

Loss for the year (189,013) - (189,013)

Balance at 30 April 2025 2,683,526 4,422,533 7,106,059

2024

Retained
Earnings

$

Asset
Revaluation

Reserve

$

Total

$

Balance at 1 May 2023 2,637,643 4,422,533 7,060,176

Profit for the year 234,897 - 234,897

Balance at 30 April 2024 2,872,540 4,422,533 7,295,073

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Life Saving Club Inc

ABN 81 799 531 933

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

Note

2025

$

2024

$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from members and others 467,589 546,431

Payments to suppliers and employees (706,812) (614,257)

Donations from supporters club 227,342 594,068

Interest received 8,017 13,029

Interest paid (4) (15,015)

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (3,868) 524,256

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment 20,909 15,617

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (135,856) (116,678)

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing
activities (114,947) (101,061)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of borrowings (1,973) (460,000)

Net cash provided by/(used in)
financing activities (1,973) (460,000)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents held (120,788) (36,805)

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 381,063 417,868

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
financial year 6 260,275 381,063

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Life Saving Club Inc

ABN 81 799 531 933

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

The financial statements cover Palm Beach QLD Surf Life Saving Club Inc as an individual entity. Palm Beach QLD Surf
Life Saving Club Inc is a not-for-profit Association incorporated in Queensland under the Associations Incorporations Act
1981 (QLD) (as amended by the Associations Incorporation and Other Legislation Amendment Act (QLD) 2020), and
registered under Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012.

The functional and presentation currency of Palm Beach QLD Surf Life Saving Club Inc is Australian dollars.

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated.

1 Basis of Preparation 

The Association is not a reporting entity since there are unlikely to exist users of the financial statements who are not
able to command the preparation of reports tailored so as to satisfy specifically all of their information needs. These
special purpose financial statements have been prepared to meet the reporting requirements of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement requirements of
the Australian Accounting Standards and Accounting Interpretations, and the disclosure requirements of AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements, AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows, AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors and AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures.

The committee do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material impact on the
financial statements of the association and in the main will only impact additional disclosures in the accounting policy
notes in future periods

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Income Tax

No provision for income tax has been raised, as the club is exempt from income tax under Div 50 of the Income
Tax Assessment Act 1997.

(b) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of GST.

Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
classified as operating cash flows.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Land and buildings

Buildings are measured using the cost model.

Freehold land is measured using the revaluation model.

7



Palm Beach QLD Surf Life Saving Club Inc

ABN 81 799 531 933

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are measured using the cost model.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets
useful life to the Association, commencing when the asset is ready for use.

Leased assets and leasehold improvements are amortised over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the
lease or their estimated useful life.

Freehold land is not depreciated. The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are shown
below:

Fixed asset class Depreciation rate

Buildings 2.5%-33.33%

Plant & Equipment Leased to External Parties 2.5%-15%

Plant and Equipment 10%-20%

Opening balance - Leased 25%-33%

Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings 10%-20%

Motor Vehicles 15%

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of each asset
is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate.

3 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments 

The Board make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial statements regarding
assumptions about current and future events affecting transactions and balances.

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial
statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the estimates.

The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below.

Key estimates - impairment of property, plant and equipment  

The Association assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluating conditions specific to the
Association that may be indicative of impairment triggers. Recoverable amounts of relevant assets are reassessed
using value-in-use calculations which incorporate various key assumptions.

8



Palm Beach QLD Surf Life Saving Club Inc

ABN 81 799 531 933

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

3 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments 

Key estimates - useful life of fixed assets  

The Association reviews its estimate of the useful life of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on the
expected utility of the assets.

Key estimates - provision 

As described in the accounting policies, provisions are measured at management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period. These estimates are made taking into account a
range of possible outcomes and will vary as further information is obtained.

Key estimates - receivables

The receivables at reporting date have been reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence that any of
the receivables are impaired. An impairment provision is included for any receivable where the entire balance is not
considered collectible. The impairment provision is based on the best information at the reporting date.

Key estimates - inventories

The Association reviews its estimates the net realisable values of inventories, taking into account the most reliable
evidence available at each reporting date.

4 Revenue and Other Income 
2025

$

2024

$

Donations income 

- Donations from supporters club 162,913 501,145

- Donations other 64,429 92,923

Total donations income 227,342 594,068

Other revenue 

- Junior revenue 27,178 21,847

- Senior revenue 27,518 30,338

- Government subsidies/grants 92,208 112,280

- Membership income 89,644 84,444

- Licence fees 240,351 231,442

- Sundry income 46,009 49,759

- Profit/Loss on Disposal of Asset 20,909 -

543,817 530,110

Total Revenue 771,159 1,124,178

Sale of Goods
Revenue is recognised on transfer of goods to the customer as this is deemed to be the point in time when risks and
rewards are transferred and there is no longer any ownership or effective control over the goods.
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Life Saving Club Inc

ABN 81 799 531 933

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

4 Revenue and Other Income 

Interest Revenue
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Grant Revenue

Grants with conditions attached which must be satisfied before the contributions will be received will be recognised as
revenue only when those conditions are satisfied.

When grant revenue is received whereby the company incurs an obligation to deliver economic value directly back to
the contributor, this is considered a reciprocal transaction and the grant revenue is recognised in the statement of
financial position as a liability until the service has been delivered to the contributor, otherwise the grant is recognised
as income on receipt.

Membership Income 

The Association has implemented AASB 15 which requires membership income to be reported over the term of the
membership due. Membership income is reported in line with the memberships useful life and subsequently apportion
of membership income treated as fees in advance. 

Other Income
Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Association is entitled to it, which is generally at the time of
receipt.

5 Other material expenses 

2025

$

2024

$

Other expenses
Equipment Purchases 16,967 3,068

Function Expense - Juniors 11,355 5,557

Nipper Coaching 29,008 22,660

Patrol Meals 12,448 12,427

Seniors Coaching 1,463 17,960

Cleaning 16,000 13,467

Consultancy Services 10,500 27,710

Electricity Costs 10,995 8,338

Trainee/Employment Expenses 1,545 14,305
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Life Saving Club Inc

ABN 81 799 531 933

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

6 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
2025

$

2024

$

Bank balances 260,175 380,963

Cash on hand 100 100

Total cash and cash equivalents 260,275 381,063

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

7 Trade and Other Receivables 
2025

$

2024

$

CURRENT
Trade receivables 87,721 19,016

Accrued income - 4,000

Total current trade and other receivables 87,721 23,016

Accounts receivable and other debtors include amounts due from members as well as amounts receivable from other
debtors. Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as
current assets.

8 Inventories 
2025

$

2024

$

At cost:
Raw materials and consumables 55,609 52,935

Total inventory 55,609 52,935

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Net realisable value is estimated using the
most reliable evidence available at the reporting date and inventory is written down through an obsolescence provision
if necessary.

9 Other Assets 
2025

$

2024

$

Prepayments 16,354 15,929

Total other assets 16,354 15,929
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Life Saving Club Inc

ABN 81 799 531 933

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

10 Property, plant and equipment 
2025

$

2024

$

LAND

At fair value 4,633,333 4,633,333

Total land 4,633,333 4,633,333

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property improvement 
At cost 5,529,798 5,505,679

Accumulated depreciation (3,604,136) (3,344,063)

Total property improvement 1,925,662 2,161,616

Furniture, fixtures and fittings
At cost 89,996 70,955

Accumulated depreciation (64,489) (61,593)

Total furniture, fixtures and fittings 25,507 9,362

Motor vehicles
At cost 111,053 84,434

Accumulated depreciation (66,156) (61,239)

Total motor vehicles 44,897 23,195

Office equipment
At cost 24,801 5,637

Accumulated depreciation (13,497) (4,467)

Total office equipment 11,304 1,170

Plant and equipment 
At fair value
At cost 413,974 384,294

Accumulated depreciation (372,816) (347,015)

Total plant and equipment 41,158 37,279

Surfclub equipment 
At cost 100,939 134,123

Accumulated depreciation (43,590) (82,989)

Total surfclub equipment 57,349 51,134

Total property, plant and
equipment 6,739,210 6,917,089

The freehold land valuation is based on historical independant valuation and the Board have assessed there is no risk of any
understatement of the reported land value with a current date valuation completed by CBRE on 22 October 2021 with a valuation
value of $14m.
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Life Saving Club Inc

ABN 81 799 531 933

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

11 Trade and Other Payables 

2025

$

2024

$

Trade payables 33,337 23,698

Deposits 3,500 2,500

Accrued expense 5,209 6,350

Total trade and other payables 42,046 32,548

Trade and other payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 days.  The carrying
value of trade and other payables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short-term nature
of the balances.

12 Borrowings 
2025

$

2024

$

CURRENT
Bank loans - NAB - 1,972

Total current borrowings - 1,972

13 Employee Benefits 
2025

$

2024

$

Current liabilities
Employee benefits 3,564 19,296

Total current employee benefits 3,564 19,296

Employee Benefits
Provisions are made for the Association's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees
to the end of the reporting period. Employee provisions have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liability is settled.

14 Other Liabilities 
2025

$

2024

$

CURRENT
Grant in advance 7,500 40,000

Prepaid income - 1,143

Total current other liabilities 7,500 41,143
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Life Saving Club Inc

ABN 81 799 531 933

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

15 Leasing Commitments 
2025

$

2024

$

Minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases:

Not later than one year 1,651 3,635

later than one year - 1,515

Total 1,651 5,150

The Association holds one operating lease for a photocopier with BBC Digital. All balances denoted are exclusive of
GST. 

16 Contingencies 

In the opinion of the Board, the Association did not have any contingencies at 30 April 2025 (30 April 2024:None).

17 Related Parties 

The Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc have donated $227,341 in donations to the Surf Club
(2024:$594,068). 

The Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc paid for the use of the lease of the premises $240,351
(2024: $231,442). 

Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club has paid to the Supporters Club a management fee of $4,000 (2024: $9,600). 

18 Events after the end of the Reporting Period 

The financial report was authorised for issue on the date of signing by the Committee.

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may
significantly affect the operations of the Association, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the
Association in future financial years.

19 Statutory Information 

The registered office and principal place of business of the
association is:

Palm Beach QLD Surf Life Saving Club Inc

117 Jefferson Lane

Palm Beach, QLD 4221
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Life Saving Club Inc

ABN 81 799 531 933

Statement by Members of the Committee

The Committee declare's that in the responsible persons' opinion:

 there are reasonable grounds to believe that the registered entity is able to pay all of its debts, as and when they
become due and payable; and

 the financial statements and notes satisfy the requirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits
Commission Act 2012.

Signed in accordance with subsection 60.15(2) of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profit Commission Regulations 2022.

Committee Member  .............................................................. Commmittee Member............................................................

Dated  18th June 2025
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc 

ABN 95 556 287 505

Committee's Report 
30 April 2025

The Committee members submit the financial report of the Association for the financial year ended 30 April 2025.

1. General information 

Committee members  

The names of committee members throughout the year and at the date of this report are:
President Leanne Major (appointed 22/6/2024)

President Dale Scotcher (resigned 22/06/2024)

Deputy President Peter Scott Rawlings

Secretary Tony Rapallo

Treasurer Scott O'Neill

Committee Geoff Bagnall

Committee Russell Francis

Committee Andrew Gault (appointed/resigned 2025)

Committee Ben Gill (appointed 22/06/2024)

Committee Scott Lyall (appointed/resigned 2025)

Committee members have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of the report unless otherwise
stated.

Principal activities  

The principal activities of the Association during the financial year were:

- To promote, foster, support and encourage the aims and objects of Palm Beach (QLD) Surf Lifesaving Club Inc and
all matters pertaining thereto, conduct fund raising activities on behalf of Palm Beach (QLD) Surf Lifesaving Club Inc,
provide members, and for members' guests, a 'club' with all the usual facilities, render aid, either financial or by other
means, to the Palm Beach (QLD) Surf Lifesaving Club Inc, an organisation affiliated with Surf Life Saving Australia.
Furthermore, to provide a services including gaming, bistro and bar for all members and members guests within the
community. 

Significant changes  

No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the year.

2. Operating results and review of operations for the year 

Operating result  

The profit of the Association for the financial year after providing for income tax amounted to $ 497,335(2024: $
675,014).

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Members of the Committee:

Committee member: ............................................... Committee member: ...............................................

Dated this .............................. day of .............................. 2025
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc

ABN 95 556 287 505

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025 

Note

2025

$

2024

$

Sales Revenue 4 10,050,811 9,163,912

Service Revenue 4 1,341,451 1,397,426

Other Revenue 4 96,203 303,007

Total Revenue 11,488,465 10,864,345

Cost of sales 5 (2,955,238) (2,654,493)

Cleaning (118,537) (116,805)

Depreciation and amortisation (474,590) (479,452)

Donations to surf club (162,913) (501,145)

Employee benefits expense (4,489,952) (4,120,759)

Gaming expense and tax (478,790) (509,427)

Membership and promotion expense (854,132) (752,092)

Payroll tax (139,937) (126,492)

Repair and maintenance (242,938) (170,430)

Other expense 6 (1,074,102) (758,238)

Total Expenses (10,991,130) (10,189,331)

Profit before income tax 497,335 675,014
Income tax expense 2(a) - -

Total comprehensive income for the
year 497,335 675,014

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc

ABN 95 556 287 505

Statement of Financial Position
As At 30 April 2025

Note

2025

$

2024

$

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 7 1,676,476 2,052,396

Trade and other receivables 8 12,675 12,382

Inventories 9 121,480 117,379

Other financial assets 10 1,818,801 800,000

Other assets 11 59,130 33,602

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 3,688,562 3,015,759

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Plant and equipment 12 738,956 718,920

Right-of-use assets 13 873,554 1,081,499

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,612,510 1,800,419

TOTAL ASSETS 5,301,072 4,816,178

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 15 800,387 693,989

Lease liabilities 13 228,491 207,214

Short-term provisions 16 479,108 454,037

Other liabilities 17 31,809 36,562

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,539,795 1,391,802

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lease liabilities 13 717,575 918,299

Long-term provisions 16 69,117 28,827

TOTAL NON-CURRENT
LIABILITIES 786,692 947,126

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,326,487 2,338,928

NET ASSETS 2,974,585 2,477,250

MEMBERS' FUNDS
Retained profits 2,974,585 2,477,250

TOTAL MEMBERS' FUNDS 2,974,585 2,477,250

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc 

ABN 95 556 287 505

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

2025

Retained
Earnings

$

Balance at 1 May 2024 2,477,250

Profit for the year 497,335

Balance at 30 April 2025 2,974,585

2024

Retained
Earnings

$

Balance at 1 May 2023 1,802,237

Profit for the year 675,014

Balance at 30 April 2024 2,477,250

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc

ABN 95 556 287 505

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

Note

2025

$

2024

$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers 12,538,514 11,921,573

Payments to suppliers and
employees (11,253,883) (10,114,313)

Donations paid (162,913) (501,145)

Interest received 77,669 45,774

Interest paid (AASB 16) (84,374) (88,321)

Net cash provided by/(used in)
operating activities 1,115,013 1,263,568

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from plant and equipment - (5,392)

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (262,714) (146,049)

Investment in term deposits (1,018,801) -

Net cash provided by/(used in)
investing activities (1,281,515) (151,441)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Payment of lease liabilities (209,418) (300,377)

Net cash provided by/(used in)
financing activities (209,418) (300,377)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents held (375,920) 811,750

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 2,052,396 1,240,646

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
financial year 7 1,676,476 2,052,396

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc

ABN 95 556 287 505

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

The financial statements cover Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc as an individual entity. Palm
Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc is a not-for-profit Association incorporated in Queensland under
the Associations Incorporations Act 1981 (QLD) (as amended by the Associations Incorporation and Other Legislation
Amendment Act (QLD) 2020).

The functional and presentation currency of Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc is Australian
dollars.

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated.

1 Basis of Preparation 

In the opinion of the Committee of Management, the Association is not a reporting entity since there are unlikely to
exist users of the financial statements who are not able to command the preparation of reports tailored so as to satisfy
specifically all of their information needs. These special purpose financial statements have been prepared to meet the
reporting requirements of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement requirements of the
Australian Accounting Standards and Accounting Interpretations, and the disclosure requirements of AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements, AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows, AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors and AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Income Tax 

The Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 provides that under the concept of mutuality clubs are only liable for
income tax on income derived from non-members and from outside entities.

The income tax expense (revenue) for the year comprises current income tax expense (income) and deferred
tax expense (income).

Current income tax expense charged to the profit or loss is the tax payable on taxable income calculated using
applicable income tax rates enacted, or substantially enacted, as at the end of the reporting year. Current tax
liabilities (assets) are therefore measured at the amounts expected to be paid to (recovered from) the relevant
taxation authority.

(b) Goods and services tax (GST) 

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of GST.

Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
classified as operating cash flows.

(c) Property, plant and equipment 

Plant and equipment   

Plant and equipment are measured using the cost model.

6



Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc

ABN 95 556 287 505

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(c) Property, plant and equipment 

Depreciation  

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets useful life to the
Association, commencing when the asset is ready for use.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below:

Fixed asset class Depreciation rate

Plant and Equipment 20%

Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings 20%

Motor Vehicles 15-25%

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of each asset
is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate.

(d) Operating leases 

The Association leases land, building and improvements for period up to 10 years from the Surf Club. Lease
contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Association allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone price. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interest in the leased asset that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowings purposes. 

The Association has elected IT equipment and other plant and equipment meeting the criteria of low-value
assets are recognised as such. Leases of low-value assets and payments relating to short-term leases (leases
with a less term of 12 months or less) are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense. 

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

- the amount of the initial measurement lease liability;

- any lease payment made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentive received; 

- any initial direct costs and,

- restoration costs. 

Right-of-use are depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. If the Association is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life. 

Liability arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liability include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

-fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

7



Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc

ABN 95 556 287 505

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(d) Operating leases 

-variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date; 

-amounts expected to be payable the Association under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Association is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and, 

-payments of penalties for terminating the lease term reflects the Associations exercising that option. 

3 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments 

The Committee make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial statements regarding
assumptions about current and future events affecting transactions and balances.

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial
statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the estimates.

The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below.

Key estimates - impairment of property, plant and equipment  

The Association assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluating conditions specific to the
Association that may be indicative of impairment triggers. Recoverable amounts of relevant assets are reassessed
using value-in-use calculations which incorporate various key assumptions.

Key estimates - impairment of intangible assets  

The Association monitors the fair value of website for indication of impairment on entitlements held at cost.

Key estimates - useful life of fixed assets  

The Association reviews its estimate of the useful life of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on the
expected life of the assets.

Key estimates - provisions

As described in the accounting policies, provisions are measured at management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period. These estimates are made taking into account a
range of possible outcomes and will vary as further information is obtained.

Key estimates - provisions for gaming jackpots 

The Association reviews its estimates and judgments for the methodology for the provision for gaming jackpots each
reporting date. The Association takes up 100% of the potential jackpot liability. 
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc

ABN 95 556 287 505

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

3 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments 

Key estimates - useful life of fixed assets  

Key estimates - receivables

The receivables at reporting date have been reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence that any of
the receivables are impaired. An impairment provision is included for any receivable where the entire balance is not
considered collectible. The impairment provision is based on the best information at the reporting date.

Key estimates - inventories

The Association reviews its estimates the net realisable values of inventories, taking into account the most reliable
evidence available at each reporting date.
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc

ABN 95 556 287 505

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

4 Revenue and Other Income 

Revenue from continuing operations  
2025

$

2024

$

Sales revenue

- Bar sales 3,976,839 3,570,261

- Bistro sales 6,054,630 5,578,470

- Merchandise sales 19,342 15,181

Total sales revenue 10,050,811 9,163,912

Service revenue 

- Gaming income 1,173,369 1,257,260

- Keno income 43,090 47,042

- Commissions received 59,208 20,559

- Membership fee 61,784 62,965

- Management fee 4,000 9,600

 Total service revenue 1,341,451 1,397,426

 rental revenue for property investment

- Gain/(loss) on sale of fixed assets (544) 5,392

- Interest income 77,669 45,774

- Government grants/payments 7,897 240,189

- Other income 11,181 11,652

Total other income 96,203 303,007

 Total Revenue 11,488,465 10,864,345

Sale of Goods
Revenue from the sales of goods comprises revenue earned from the provision of good, beverage and other goods
and is recognised (net of rebates, returns, discounts and other allowances) on the point of delivery as this corresponds
to the transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods.

Rendering of Services
Revenue from rendering services comprises revenue from gaming facilities together with other services to members
and other patrons of the club and is recognised when the services are provided.

Interest Revenue
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Other Income
Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Association is entitled to it, which is generally at the time of
receipt.

Membership Income 
The Association has implemented AASB 15 which requires membership income to be reported over the term of the
membership due. Membership income is reported in line with the memberships useful life and subsequently apportion
of membership income treated as fees in advance. 
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc

ABN 95 556 287 505

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

5 Cost of sales 

2025

$

2024

$

Cost of sales - Bar 1,066,161 919,143

Cost of sales - Food 1,875,424 1,724,479

Cost of Sales - Merchandise 13,653 10,871

Total cost of sales 2,955,238 2,654,493

6 Other material expenses 

2025

$

2024

$

Labour Hire - Bar - 248

Consumables - Catering 44,622 44,166

J - Consumables - Jeffersons 30,020 23,650

Gas - Catering 37,719 34,940

Pay TV Costs 42,800 40,300

Commission / EFTPOS Charges 99,157 90,831

Consultancy Fees 33,549 27,442

Electricity 98,956 75,047

Entertainment 67,228 51,912

Fire Safety 20,901 8,850

Insurance 72,227 66,217

Staff Amenities 28,598 21,664

Staff Meals (Management) 50,523 41,899

Staff Meal/Merchandise
Discount 116,582 54,724

Staff Training - Admin (external) 23,288 8,494

Support Costs
MYOB/Xero/foundU 19,613 17,299

7 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
2025

$

2024

$

Cash on hand 148,700 128,260

Bank balances 1,527,776 1,924,136

Total cash and cash equivalents 1,676,476 2,052,396

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc

ABN 95 556 287 505

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

8 Trade and Other Receivables 
2025

$

2024

$

Trade receivables 8,792 10,650

Deposits 3,883 1,732

Total trade and other receivables 12,675 12,382

Accounts receivable and other debtors include amounts due from members as well as amounts receivable from other
debtors. Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as
current assets.

9 Inventories 
2025

$

2024

$

At cost:
Raw materials and consumables 121,480 117,379

Total inventory 121,480 117,379

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Net realisable value is estimated using the
most reliable evidence available at the reporting date and inventory is written down through an obsolescence provision
if necessary.
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc

ABN 95 556 287 505

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

10 Other Financial Assets 
2025

$

2024

$

CURRENT
Term deposit 1,818,801 800,000

Total financial assets 1,818,801 800,000

11 Other Assets 
2025

$

2024

$

Prepayments 59,130 32,646

Insurance claim recoverable - 956

Total other assets 59,130 33,602

12 Property, plant and equipment 
2025

$

2024

$

Plant and equipment
At cost 1,042,945 976,969

Accumulated depreciation (826,977) (703,945)

Total plant and equipment 215,968 273,024

Furniture, fixtures and fittings
At cost 370,795 293,480

Accumulated depreciation (267,166) (237,323)

Total furniture, fixtures and fittings 103,629 56,157

Gaming equipment 
At cost 1,054,353 1,042,768

Accumulated depreciation (713,601) (667,444)

Total computer software 340,752 375,324

Capital works in progress
Work in Progress 78,607 14,415

Total property, plant and
equipment 738,956 718,920
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc

ABN 95 556 287 505

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

12 Property, plant and equipment 

(a) Movements in carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment  

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of the current financial year:

Plant and
Equipment

$

Furniture,
Fixtures and

Fittings

$

Gaming
Equipment

$

Work In
Progress

$

Total

$

Year ended 30 April 2024
Balance at the beginning of year 273,024 56,157 375,324 14,415 718,920

Additions 65,976 77,315 55,230 64,192 262,713

Disposals - - (546) - (546)

Depreciation expense (123,032) (29,843) (89,256) - (242,131)

Balance at the end of the year 215,968 103,629 340,752 78,607 738,956
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc

ABN 95 556 287 505

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

13 Leases 

Right-of-use assets  
$

Year ended 30 April 2025
Opening balance 1,081,499

Increase due to remeasurement of lease liability 24,515

Amortisation (232,460)

Balance at end of year 873,554

$

Year ended 30 April 2024
Opening balance 1,053,421

Increase due to remeasurement of lease liability 213,441

Additions to right-of-use assets 43,581

Amortisation (228,944)

Balance at end of year 1,081,499

The Association's lease portfolio includes property and equipment. These leases have various lease terms ranging
from 5 years to 10 years as follows:

Lease :

Building: Jefferson Lane, Palm Beach - expiry date- 30th June 2029.

Equipment: Photocopier (Toshiba) - expiry date- 1 November 2028 (new lease). This equipment is treated as an low
value asset and expensed. Refer to accounting policy (d) and note 17.

Equipment:  Cash Recycler Machine and ATM (Next Payments) - expiry date 31 May 2027.

Fleet - Toyota Hiace - expiry date 1 June 2026. 

Lease liabilities  

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash flows is shown in the table below:

< 1 year

$

> 1 year

$

Total
undiscounted
lease liabilities

$

Lease liabilities
included in this

Statement Of
Financial Position

$

2025
Lease liabilities 289,615 802,379 1,091,994 946,066

2024
Lease liabilities 288,297 1,091,994 1,380,291 1,125,513
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc

ABN 95 556 287 505

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

14 Intangible Assets 
2025

$

2024

$

Development costs
Cost 1,900 1,900

Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (1,900) (1,900)

- -

In accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets, the Association impairs the website design cost at each reporting
period. 

Impairment testing is an area involving management judgemental, requiring assessment as to whether the carrying
value of website design cost can be supported by the net present value of anticipated future cash flow projections
which have been discounted at an appropriate rate and using a terminal value to incorporate expectations of growth
thereafter. 

15 Trade and Other Payables 

2025

$

2024

$

Trade payables 682,245 577,740

Tax payables 57,694 64,636

Deposits 5,815 1,495

Accrued expenses 44,644 41,073

Other payables 9,989 9,045

Total trade and other payables 800,387 693,989

Trade and other payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 days.  The carrying
value of trade and other payables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short-term nature
of the balances.
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc

ABN 95 556 287 505

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

16 Provisions 
2025

$

2024

$

CURRENT
Employee benefits 206,831 153,351

Jackpot provision 224,411 252,820

Long service leave 47,866 47,866

Total current provisions 479,108 454,037

NON-CURRENT
Employee benefits 69,117 28,827

Total non-current provisions 69,117 28,827

Employee Benefits
Provisions are made for the Association's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees
to the end of the reporting period. Employee provisions have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liability is settled.

Other Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Association has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for
which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured. 

17 Other Liabilities 
2025

$

2024

$

CURRENT
Prepaid membership income 31,809 36,562

Total other liability 31,809 36,562

18 Leasing Commitments  
2025

$

2024

$

Minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases:
Not later than one year 1,745 1,745

one to five years 4,508 6,253

Total operating leases 6,253 7,998

The Association held one operating lease for a photocopier. All balances are exclusive of GST. 
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc

ABN 95 556 287 505

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 April 2025

19 Contingencies 

In the opinion of the Committee of Management, the Association did not have any contingencies at 30 April 2025 (30
April 2024:None), unless otherwise stated below. 

Contingent Assets  

The Association holds 50 gaming machine entitlements. The fair value of gaming machines entitlements per average
price sold is $5,363 (publication updated on ATO web site 29th October 2020). Palm Beach QLD Surf life Saving Club
Supporters Club Inc total contigent asset is estimated at $268,150.

The clubs has entered into an insurance claim with the insurance provider whereby there is an expectation the
supporters club are to receive insurance recovering income for the damaged incurred from the Cyclone Event in March
2025. At present no such income has been received. We draw attention to the reader to note that the increase in
repairs and maintenance in the current year audit has been impacted by such event.  

20 Related Parties 

Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc paid for the use of the lease of the premises $240,351
(2024: $231,442). These payments have been reflected against the lease liability of the Club. 

Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc has received from the Surf Club a management fee of
$4,000 (2024: $9,600).  

Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc have donated $227,341 in donations to the Surf Club
(2024:$594,068).

21 Events after the end of the Reporting Period 

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may
significantly affect the operations of the Association, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the
Association in future financial years.

22 Statutory Information 

The registered office and principal place of business of the
Association is:

Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc

117 Jefferson Lane

Palm Beach, QLD 4221
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Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc

ABN 95 556 287 505

Statement by Members of the Committee

The committee has determined that the Association is not a reporting entity and that this special purpose financial report
should be prepared in accordance with the accounting policies outlined in Note 2 to the financial statements.

In the opinion of the committee the financial report as set out on pages 2 to 18: 

1. Presents fairly the financial position of Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club Supporters Club Inc as at 30 April 2025
and its performance for the year ended on that date.

2. At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that Palm Beach QLD Surf Lifesaving Club
Supporters Club Inc will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the committee and is signed for and on behalf of the committee
by:

President .................................................................. Treasurer ..................................................................

Dated 
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Palm Beach Youth - the future of our Club 
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Respect 

We respect our past, people, 
property and place 

Unity 

We are united in purpose 

Inclusive 

We are welcoming and 
friendly 

Involvement 

We get involved 


